

1 TITLE 35: ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION  
2 SUBTITLE B: AIR POLLUTION  
3 CHAPTER I: POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD  
4 SUBCHAPTER c: EMISSION STANDARDS AND LIMITATIONS  
5 FOR STATIONARY SOURCES  
6

7 PART 225  
8 CONTROL OF EMISSIONS FROM LARGE COMBUSTION SOURCES  
9

10 SUBPART A: GENERAL PROVISIONS  
11

12	Section	
13	225.100	Severability
14	225.120	Abbreviations and Acronyms
15	225.130	Definitions
16	225.140	Incorporations by Reference
17	225.150	Commence Commercial Operation

18  
19 SUBPART B: CONTROL OF MERCURY EMISSIONS  
20 FROM COAL-FIRED ELECTRIC GENERATING UNITS  
21

22	Section	
23	225.200	Purpose
24	225.202	Measurement Methods
25	225.205	Applicability
26	225.210	Compliance Requirements
27	225.220	Clean Air Act Permit Program (CAAPP) Permit Requirements
28	225.230	Emission Standards for EGUs at Existing Sources
29	225.232	Averaging Demonstrations for Existing Sources
30	225.233	Multi-Pollutant <del>Standards</del> Standard (MPS)
31	225.234	Temporary Technology-Based Standard for EGUs at Existing Sources
32	225.235	Units Scheduled for Permanent Shut Down
33	225.237	Emission Standards for New Sources with EGUs
34	225.238	Temporary Technology-Based Standard for New Sources with EGUs
35	225.239	Periodic Emissions Testing Alternative Requirements
36	225.240	General Monitoring and Reporting Requirements
37	225.250	Initial Certification and Recertification Procedures for Emissions Monitoring
38	225.260	Out of Control Periods and Data Availability for Emission Monitors
39	225.261	Additional Requirements to Provide Heat Input Data
40	225.263	Monitoring of Gross Electrical Output
41	225.265	Coal Analysis for Input Mercury Levels
42	225.270	Notifications
43	225.290	Recordkeeping and Reporting

44	225.291	Combined Pollutant Standard: Purpose
45	225.292	Applicability of the Combined Pollutant Standard
46	225.293	Combined Pollutant Standard: Notice of Intent
47	225.294	Combined Pollutant Standard: Control Technology Requirements and Emissions Standards for Mercury
48		
49	225.295	Combined Pollutant Standard: Emissions Standards for NO <sub>x</sub> and SO <sub>2</sub>
50	225.296	Combined Pollutant Standard: Control Technology Requirements for NO <sub>x</sub> , SO <sub>2</sub> , and PM Emissions
51		
52	225.297	Combined Pollutant Standard: Permanent Shut-Downs
53	225.298	Combined Pollutant Standard: Requirements for NO <sub>x</sub> and SO <sub>2</sub> Allowances
54	225.299	Combined Pollutant Standard: Clean Air Act Requirements

SUBPART C: CLEAN AIR ACT INTERSTATE  
RULE (CAIR) SO<sub>2</sub> TRADING PROGRAM

55		
56		
57		
58		
59	Section	
60	225.300	Purpose
61	225.305	Applicability
62	225.310	Compliance Requirements
63	225.315	Appeal Procedures
64	225.320	Permit Requirements
65	225.325	Trading Program

SUBPART D: CAIR NO<sub>x</sub> ANNUAL TRADING PROGRAM

66		
67		
68		
69	Section	
70	225.400	Purpose
71	225.405	Applicability
72	225.410	Compliance Requirements
73	225.415	Appeal Procedures
74	225.420	Permit Requirements
75	225.425	Annual Trading Budget
76	225.430	Timing for Annual Allocations
77	225.435	Methodology for Calculating Annual Allocations
78	225.440	Annual Allocations
79	225.445	New Unit Set-Aside (NUSA)
80	225.450	Monitoring, Recordkeeping and Reporting Requirements for Gross Electrical Output and Useful Thermal Energy
81		
82	225.455	Clean Air Set-Aside (CASA)
83	225.460	Energy Efficiency and Conservation, Renewable Energy, and Clean Technology Projects
84		
85	225.465	Clean Air Set-Aside (CASA) Allowances
86	225.470	Clean Air Set-Aside (CASA) Applications

87	225.475	Agency Action on Clean Air Set-Aside (CASA) Applications
88	225.480	Compliance Supplement Pool
89		
90		SUBPART E: CAIR NO <sub>x</sub> OZONE SEASON TRADING PROGRAM
91		
92	Section	
93	225.500	Purpose
94	225.505	Applicability
95	225.510	Compliance Requirements
96	225.515	Appeal Procedures
97	225.520	Permit Requirements
98	225.525	Ozone Season Trading Budget
99	225.530	Timing for Ozone Season Allocations
100	225.535	Methodology for Calculating Ozone Season Allocations
101	225.540	Ozone Season Allocations
102	225.545	New Unit Set-Aside (NUSA)
103	225.550	Monitoring, Recordkeeping and Reporting Requirements for Gross Electrical
104		Output and Useful Thermal Energy
105	225.555	Clean Air Set-Aside (CASA)
106	225.560	Energy Efficiency and Conservation, Renewable Energy, and Clean Technology
107		Projects
108	225.565	Clean Air Set-Aside (CASA) Allowances
109	225.570	Clean Air Set-Aside (CASA) Applications
110	225.575	Agency Action on Clean Air Set-Aside (CASA) Applications
111		
112		SUBPART F: COMBINED POLLUTANT STANDARDS
113		
114	<u>Section</u>	
115	225.600	Purpose (Repealed)
116	225.605	Applicability (Repealed)
117	225.610	Notice of Intent (Repealed)
118	225.615	Control Technology Requirements and Emissions Standards for Mercury
119		(Repealed)
120	225.620	Emissions Standards for NO <sub>x</sub> and SO <sub>2</sub> (Repealed)
121	225.625	Control Technology Requirements for NO <sub>x</sub> , SO <sub>2</sub> , and PM Emissions (Repealed)
122	225.630	Permanent Shut Downs (Repealed)
123	225.635	Requirements for CAIR SO <sub>2</sub> , CAIR NO <sub>x</sub> , and CAIR NO <sub>x</sub> Ozone Season
124		Allowances (Repealed)
125	225.640	Clean Air Act Requirements (Repealed)
126		
127	225.APPENDIX A	Specified EGUs for Purposes of the CPS (Coal-Fired Boilers as of July 1,
128		2006)
129	225.APPENDIX B	Continuous Emission Monitoring Systems for Mercury

- 130 225.EXHIBIT A Specifications and Test Procedures
- 131 225.EXHIBIT B Quality Assurance and Quality Control Procedures
- 132 225.EXHIBIT C Conversion Procedures
- 133 225.EXHIBIT D Quality Assurance and Operating Procedures for Sorbent Trap
- 134 Monitoring Systems
- 135

136 AUTHORITY: Implementing and authorized by Section 27 of the Environmental Protection Act  
137 [415 ILCS 5/27].

138  
139 SOURCE: Adopted in R06-25 at 31 Ill. Reg. 129, effective December 21, 2006; amended in  
140 R06-26 at 31 Ill. Reg. 12864, effective August 31, 2007; amended in R09-10 at 33 Ill. Reg.  
141 10427, effective June 26, 2009; amended in R15-21 at 39 Ill. Reg. 16225, effective December 7,  
142 2015; amended in R18-20 at 43 Ill. Reg. \_\_\_\_\_, effective \_\_\_\_\_.

143  
144 SUBPART B: CONTROL OF MERCURY EMISSIONS  
145 FROM COAL-FIRED ELECTRIC GENERATING UNITS  
146

147 **Section 225.233 Multi-Pollutant Standards (MPS)**

148  
149 a) General-

- 150
- 151 1) As an alternative to compliance with the emissions standards of Section
- 152 225.230(a), the owner of eligible EGUs may elect for those EGUs to
- 153 demonstrate compliance pursuant to this Section, which establishes
- 154 control requirements and standards for emissions of NO<sub>x</sub> and SO<sub>2</sub>, as well
- 155 as for emissions of mercury.
- 156
- 157 2) For the purpose of this Section, the following requirements apply:
- 158
- 159 A) An eligible EGU is an EGU that is located in Illinois and which
- 160 commenced commercial operation on or before December 31,
- 161 2004; and
- 162
- 163 B) Ownership of an eligible EGU is determined based on direct
- 164 ownership, by the holding of a majority interest in a company that
- 165 owns the EGU or EGUs, or by the common ownership of the
- 166 company that owns the EGU, whether through a parent-subsidiary
- 167 relationship, as a sister corporation, or as an affiliated corporation
- 168 with the same parent corporation, provided that the owner has the
- 169 right or authority to submit a CAAPP application on behalf of the
- 170 EGU.
- 171

172  
173  
174  
175  
176  
177  
178  
179  
180  
181  
182  
183  
184  
185  
186  
187  
188  
189  
190  
191  
192  
193  
194  
195  
196  
197  
198  
199  
200  
201  
202  
203  
204  
205  
206  
207  
208  
209  
210  
211  
212  
213

- 3) The owner of one or more EGUs electing to demonstrate compliance with this Subpart B pursuant to this Section must submit an application for a CAAPP permit modification to the Agency, as provided in Section 225.220, that includes the information specified in subsection (b) ~~of this Section~~ and which clearly states the owner's election to demonstrate compliance pursuant to this Section 225.233.
  - A) If the owner of one or more EGUs elects to demonstrate compliance with this Subpart pursuant to this Section, then all EGUs it owns in Illinois as of July 1, 2006, as defined in subsection (a)(2)(B) ~~of this Section~~, must be thereafter subject to the standards and control requirements of this Section, except as provided in subsection (a)(3)(B). Such EGUs must be referred to as a Multi-Pollutant Standard (MPS) Group.
  - B) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the owner may exclude from an MPS Group any EGU scheduled for permanent shutdown that the owner so designates in its CAAPP application required to be submitted pursuant to subsection (a)(3) ~~of this Section~~, with compliance for such units to be achieved by means of Section 225.235.
  
- 4) Notwithstanding any contrary provision in this subsection (a), on and after January 1, 2019:
  - A) The following EGUs shall be merged into a new MPS Group: Baldwin Units 1, 2, and 3; Coffeen Units 1 and 2; Duck Creek Unit 1; E.D. Edwards Units 2 and 3; Havana Unit 9; Hennepin Units 1 and 2; Joppa Units 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6; and Newton Unit 1. If one or more of the above EGUs are transferred to a different owner, such EGU or EGUs will become a separate MPS Group on and after the date of transfer. For purposes of this Section, "transfer" means sale, conveyance, transfer, or other change in ownership of an EGU; and
  - B) No other EGUs except for those listed in subsection (a)(4)(A) are subject to the requirements of this Section.
  
- 54) When an EGU is subject to the requirements of this Section, the requirements apply to all owners or operators of the EGU.
  
- b) Notice of Intent-

214  
215  
216  
217  
218  
219  
220  
221  
222  
223  
224  
225  
226  
227  
228  
229  
230  
231  
232  
233  
234  
235  
236  
237  
238  
239  
240  
241  
242  
243  
244  
245  
246  
247  
248  
249  
250  
251  
252  
253  
254  
255  
256

The owner of one or more EGUs that intends to comply with this Subpart B by means of this Section must notify the Agency of its intention by December 31, 2007. The following information must accompany the notification:

- 1) The identification of each EGU that will be complying with this Subpart B by means of the multi-pollutant standards contained in this Section, with evidence that the owner has identified all EGUs that it owned in Illinois as of July 1, 2006 and which commenced commercial operation on or before December 31, 2004;
- 2) If an EGU identified in subsection (b)(1) ~~of this Section~~ is also owned or operated by a person different than the owner submitting the notice of intent, a demonstration that the submitter has the right to commit the EGU or authorization from the responsible official for the EGU accepting the application;
- 3) The Base Emission Rates for the EGUs, with copies of supporting data and calculations;
- 4) A summary of the current control devices installed and operating on each EGU and identification of the additional control devices that will likely be needed for the each EGU to comply with emission control requirements of this Section, including identification of each EGU in the MPS group that will be addressed by subsection (c)(1)(B) ~~of this Section~~, with information showing that the eligibility criteria for this subsection (b) are satisfied; and
- 5) Identification of each EGU that is scheduled for permanent shut down, as provided by Section 225.235, which will not be part of the MPS Group and which will not be demonstrating compliance with this Subpart B pursuant to this Section.

c) Control Technology Requirements for Emissions of Mercury-

- 1) Requirements for EGUs in an MPS Group-
  - A) For each EGU in an MPS Group other than an EGU that is addressed by subsection (c)(1)(B) ~~of this Section~~ for the period beginning July 1, 2009 (or December 31, 2009 for an EGU for which an SO<sub>2</sub> scrubber or fabric filter is being installed to be in operation by December 31, 2009), and ending on December 31, 2014 (or such earlier date that the EGU is subject to the mercury emission standard in subsection (d)(1) ~~of this Section~~), the owner or operator of the EGU must install, to the extent not already

257  
 258  
 259  
 260  
 261  
 262  
 263  
 264  
 265  
 266  
 267  
 268  
 269  
 270  
 271  
 272  
 273  
 274  
 275  
 276  
 277  
 278  
 279  
 280  
 281  
 282  
 283  
 284  
 285  
 286  
 287  
 288  
 289  
 290  
 291  
 292  
 293  
 294  
 295  
 296  
 297  
 298  
 299

installed, and properly operate and maintain one of the following emission control devices:

- i) A Halogenated Activated Carbon Injection System, complying with the sorbent injection requirements of subsection (c)(2) of this Section, except as may be otherwise provided by subsection (c)(4) of this Section, and followed by a Cold-Side Electrostatic Precipitator or Fabric Filter; or
- ii) If the boiler fires bituminous coal, a Selective Catalytic Reduction (SCR) System and an SO<sub>2</sub> Scrubber.

B) An owner of an EGU in an MPS Group has two options under this subsection (c). For an MPS Group that contains EGUs smaller than 90 gross MW in capacity, the owner may designate any such EGUs to be not subject to subsection (c)(1)(A) of this Section. Or, for an MPS Group that contains EGUs with gross MW capacity of less than 115 MW, the owner may designate any such EGUs to be not subject to subsection (c)(1)(A) of this Section, provided that the aggregate gross MW capacity of the designated EGUs does not exceed 4% of the total gross MW capacity of the MPS Group. For any EGU subject to one of these two options, unless the EGU is subject to the emission standards in subsection (d)(2) of this Section, beginning on January 1, 2013, and continuing until such date that the owner or operator of the EGU commits to comply with the mercury emission standard in subsection (d)(2) of this Section, the owner or operator of the EGU must install and properly operate and maintain a Halogenated Activated Carbon Injection System that complies with the sorbent injection requirements of subsection (c)(2) of this Section, except as may be otherwise provided by subsection (c)(4) of this Section, and followed by either a Cold-Side Electrostatic Precipitator or Fabric Filter. The use of a properly installed, operated, and maintained Halogenated Activated Carbon Injection System that meets the sorbent injection requirements of subsection (c)(2) of this Section is defined as the "principal control technique."

- 2) For each EGU for which injection of halogenated activated carbon is required by subsection (c)(1) of this Section, the owner or operator of the EGU must inject halogenated activated carbon in an optimum manner, which, except as provided in subsection (c)(4) of this Section, is defined as all of the following:

300  
 301  
 302  
 303  
 304  
 305  
 306  
 307  
 308  
 309  
 310  
 311  
 312  
 313  
 314  
 315  
 316  
 317  
 318  
 319  
 320  
 321  
 322  
 323  
 324  
 325  
 326  
 327  
 328  
 329  
 330  
 331  
 332  
 333  
 334  
 335  
 336  
 337  
 338  
 339  
 340  
 341  
 342

- A) The use of an injection system designed for effective absorption of mercury, considering the configuration of the EGU and its ductwork;
- B) The injection of halogenated activated carbon manufactured by Alstom, Norit, or Sorbent Technologies, Calgon Carbon's FLUEPAC CF Plus, or Calgon Carbon's FLUEPAC MC Plus, or the injection of any other halogenated activated carbon or sorbent that the owner or operator of the EGU has demonstrated to have similar or better effectiveness for control of mercury emissions; and
- C) The injection of sorbent at the following minimum rates, as applicable:
  - i) For an EGU firing subbituminous coal, 5.0 lbs per million actual cubic feet or, for any cyclone-fired EGU that will install a scrubber and baghouse by December 31, 2012, and which already meets an emission rate of 0.020 lbs mercury/GWh gross electrical output or at least 75 percent reduction of input mercury, 2.5 lbs per million actual cubic feet;
  - ii) For an EGU firing bituminous coal, 10.0 lbs per million actual cubic feet for any cyclone-fired EGU that will install a scrubber and baghouse by December 31, 2012, and which already meets an emission rate of 0.020 lb mercury/GWh gross electrical output or at least 75 percent reduction of input mercury, 5.0 lbs per million actual cubic feet;
  - iii) For an EGU firing a blend of subbituminous and bituminous coal, a rate that is the weighted average of the above rates, based on the blend of coal being fired; or
  - iv) A rate or rates set lower by the Agency, in writing, than the rate specified in any of subsections (c)(2)(C)(i), (c)(2)(C)(ii), or (c)(2)(C)(iii) ~~of this Section~~ on a unit-specific basis, provided that the owner or operator of the EGU has demonstrated that such rate or rates are needed so that carbon injection will not increase particulate matter emissions or opacity so as to threaten noncompliance with applicable requirements for particulate matter or opacity.



343  
 344  
 345  
 346  
 347  
 348  
 349  
 350  
 351  
 352  
 353  
 354  
 355  
 356  
 357  
 358  
 359  
 360  
 361  
 362  
 363  
 364  
 365  
 366  
 367  
 368  
 369  
 370  
 371  
 372  
 373  
 374  
 375  
 376  
 377  
 378  
 379  
 380  
 381  
 382  
 383  
 384  
 385

D) For the purposes of subsection (c)(2)(C) ~~of this Section~~, the flue gas flow rate shall be the gas flow rate in the stack for all units except for those equipped with activated carbon injection prior to a hot-side electrostatic precipitator; for units equipped with activated carbon injection prior to a hot-side electrostatic precipitator, the flue gas flow rate shall be the gas flow rate at the inlet to the hot-side electrostatic precipitator, which shall be determined as the stack flow rate adjusted through the use of Charles' Law for the differences in gas temperatures in the stack and at the inlet to the electrostatic precipitator ( $V_{esp} = V_{stack} \times T_{esp}/T_{stack}$ , where V = gas flow rate in acf and T = gas temperature in Kelvin or Rankine).

3) The owner or operator of an EGU that seeks to operate an EGU with an activated carbon injection rate or rates that are set on a unit-specific basis pursuant to subsection (c)(2)(C)(iv) ~~of this Section~~ must submit an application to the Agency proposing such rate or rates, and must meet the requirements of subsections (c)(3)(A) and (c)(3)(B) ~~of this Section~~, subject to the limitations of subsections (c)(3)(C) and (c)(3)(D) ~~of this Section~~:

A) The application must be submitted as an application for a new or revised federally enforceable operating permit for the EGU, and it must include a summary of relevant mercury emission data for the EGU, the unit-specific injection rate or rates that are proposed, and detailed information to support the proposed injection rate or rates; and

B) This application must be submitted no later than the date that activated carbon must first be injected. For example, the owner or operator of an EGU that must inject activated carbon pursuant to subsection (c)(1)(A) ~~of this subsection~~ must apply for unit-specific injection rate or rates by July 1, 2009. Thereafter, the owner or operator of the EGU may supplement its application; and

C) Any decision of the Agency denying a permit or granting a permit with conditions that set a lower injection rate or rates may be appealed to the Board pursuant to Section 39 of the Act; and

D) The owner or operator of an EGU may operate at the injection rate or rates proposed in its application until a final decision is made on the application, including a final decision on any appeal to the Board.

386  
387  
388  
389  
390  
391  
392  
393  
394  
395  
396  
397  
398  
399  
400  
401  
402  
403  
404  
405  
406  
407  
408  
409  
410  
411  
412  
413  
414  
415  
416  
417  
418  
419  
420  
421  
422  
423  
424  
425  
426  
427  
428

- 4) During any evaluation of the effectiveness of a listed sorbent, an alternative sorbent, or other technique to control mercury emissions, the owner or operator of an EGU need not comply with the requirements of subsection (c)(2) ~~of this Section~~ for any system needed to carry out the evaluation, as further provided as follows:
- A) The owner or operator of the EGU must conduct the evaluation in accordance with a formal evaluation program submitted to the Agency at least 30 days prior to commencement of the evaluation;
  - B) The duration and scope of the evaluation may not exceed the duration and scope reasonably needed to complete the desired evaluation of the alternative control technique, as initially addressed by the owner or operator in a support document submitted with the evaluation program;
  - C) The owner or operator of the EGU must submit a report to the Agency no later than 30 days after the conclusion of the evaluation that describes the evaluation conducted and which provides the results of the evaluation; and
  - D) If the evaluation of the alternative control technique shows less effective control of mercury emissions from the EGU than was achieved with the principal control technique, the owner or operator of the EGU must resume use of the principal control technique. If the evaluation of the alternative control technique shows comparable effectiveness to the principal control technique, the owner or operator of the EGU may either continue to use the alternative control technique in a manner that is at least as effective as the principal control technique, or it may resume use of the principal control technique. If the evaluation of the alternative control technique shows more effective control of mercury emissions than the control technique, the owner or operator of the EGU must continue to use the alternative control technique in a manner that is more effective than the principal control technique, so long as it continues to be subject to this subsection (c).
- 5) In addition to complying with the applicable recordkeeping and monitoring requirements in Sections 225.240 through 225.290, the owner or operator of an EGU that elects to comply with this Subpart B by means of this Section must also comply with the following additional requirements:

429  
430  
431  
432  
433  
434  
435  
436  
437  
438  
439  
440  
441  
442  
443  
444  
445  
446  
447  
448  
449  
450  
451  
452  
453  
454  
455  
456  
457  
458  
459  
460  
461  
462  
463  
464  
465  
466  
467  
468  
469  
470  
471

- A) For the first 36 months that injection of sorbent is required, it must maintain records of the usage of sorbent, the flue gas flow rate from the EGU (and, if the unit is equipped with activated carbon injection prior to a hot-side electrostatic precipitator, flue gas temperature at the inlet of the hot-side electrostatic precipitator and in the stack), and the sorbent feed rate, in pounds per million actual cubic feet of flue gas, on a weekly average;
  - B) After the first 36 months that injection of sorbent is required, it must monitor activated sorbent feed rate to the EGU, gas flow rate in the stack, and, if the unit is equipped with activated carbon injection prior to a hot-side electrostatic precipitator, flue gas temperature at the inlet of the hot-side electrostatic precipitator and in the stack. It must automatically record this data and the sorbent carbon feed rate, in pounds per million actual cubic feet of flue gas, on an hourly average; and
  - C) If a blend of bituminous and subbituminous coal is fired in the EGU, it must keep records of the amount of each type of coal burned and the required injection rate for injection of activated carbon, on a weekly basis.
- 6) Until June 30, 2012, as an alternative to the CEMS or excepted monitoring system (sorbent trap system) monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting requirements in Sections 225.240 through 225.290, the owner or operator of an EGU may elect to comply with the emissions testing, monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting requirements in Section 225.239(c), (d), (e), (f)(1) and (2), (h)(2), (i)(3) and (4), and (j)(1).
- 7) In addition to complying with the applicable reporting requirements in Sections 225.240 through 225.290, the owner or operator of an EGU that elects to comply with this Subpart B by means of this Section must also submit quarterly reports for the recordkeeping and monitoring conducted pursuant to subsection (c)(5) ~~of this Section~~.
- d) Emission Standards for Mercury:
- 1) For each EGU in an MPS Group that is not addressed by subsection (c)(1)(B) ~~of this Section~~, beginning January 1, 2015 (or such earlier date when the owner or operator of the EGU notifies the Agency that it will comply with these standards) and continuing thereafter, the owner or operator of the EGU must comply with one of the following standards on a rolling 12-month basis:

472  
473  
474  
475  
476  
477  
478  
479  
480  
481  
482  
483  
484  
485  
486  
487  
488  
489  
490  
491  
492  
493  
494  
495  
496  
497  
498  
499  
500  
501  
502  
503  
504  
505  
506  
507  
508  
509  
510  
511  
512  
513  
514

- A) An emission standard of 0.0080 lb mercury/GWh gross electrical output; or
  - B) A minimum 90-percent reduction of input mercury.
- 2) For each EGU in an MPS Group that has been addressed under subsection (c)(1)(B) ~~of this Section~~, beginning on the date when the owner or operator of the EGU notifies the Agency that it will comply with these standards and continuing thereafter, the owner or operator of the EGU must comply with one of the following standards on a rolling 12-month basis:
- A) An emission standard of 0.0080 lb mercury/GWh gross electrical output; or
  - B) A minimum 90-percent reduction of input mercury.
- 3) Compliance with the mercury emission standard or reduction requirement of this subsection (d) must be calculated in accordance with Section 225.230(a) or (d), or Section 225.232 until December 31, 2013.
- 4) Until June 30, 2012, as an alternative to demonstrating compliance with the emissions standards in this subsection (d), the owner or operator of an EGU may elect to comply with the emissions testing requirements in Section 225.239(a)(4) and (b), (c), (d), (e), (f), (g), (h), (i), and (j) ~~of this Subpart~~.
- e) Emission Standards for NO<sub>x</sub> and SO<sub>2</sub>:
- 1) NO<sub>x</sub> Emission Standards:
    - A) Beginning in calendar year 2012 and continuing through calendar year 2018 ~~in each calendar thereafter~~, for the EGUs in each MPS Group, the owner and operator of the EGUs must comply with an overall NO<sub>x</sub> annual emission rate of no more than 0.11 lb/million Btu or an emission rate equivalent to 52 percent of the Base Annual Rate of NO<sub>x</sub> emissions, whichever is more stringent.
    - B) Beginning in the 2012 ozone season and continuing through the 2018 ~~in each ozone season thereafter~~, for the EGUs in each MPS Group, the owner and operator of the EGUs must comply with an overall NO<sub>x</sub> seasonal emission rate of no more than 0.11 lb/million

515  
516  
517  
518  
519  
520  
521  
522  
523  
524  
525  
526  
527  
528  
529  
530  
531  
532  
533  
534  
535  
536  
537  
538  
539  
540  
541  
542  
543  
544  
545  
546  
547  
548  
549  
550  
551  
552  
553  
554  
555  
556  
557

Btu or an emission rate equivalent to 80 percent of the Base Seasonal Rate of NO<sub>x</sub> emissions, whichever is more stringent.

- C) Except as otherwise provided in subsections (f), (g), and (h), beginning in calendar year 2019 and continuing in each calendar year thereafter, the owner and operator of the EGUs in an MPS Group must not cause or allow to be discharged into the atmosphere combined annual NO<sub>x</sub> emissions in excess of 22,469 tons from all EGUs.
  
- D) Except as otherwise provided in subsections (f), (g), and (h), beginning in the year 2019 and continuing in each year thereafter, from May 1 to September 30 the owner and operator of the EGUs in an MPS Group must not cause or allow to be discharged into the atmosphere combined NO<sub>x</sub> emissions in excess of 11,500 tons from all EGUs.
  
- E) On and after January 1, 2019, the owner and operator of any of Baldwin Units 1 and 2, Coffeen Units 1 and 2, Duck Creek Unit 1, E.D. Edwards Unit 3, and Havana Unit 9 must comply with the following:
  - i) Operate each existing selective catalytic reduction (SCR) control system on each EGU in accordance with good operating practices and at all times when the unit it serves is in operation, provided that such operation of the SCR control system is consistent with the technological limitations, manufacturers' specifications, and good engineering and maintenance practices for the SCR control system. During any such period in which the SCR is not operational, the owner and operator must minimize emissions to the extent reasonably practicable. All NO<sub>x</sub> emissions from each EGU, regardless of whether the SCR is operational or non-operational, must be included in determining compliance with the emission standards set forth under subsections (e)(1)(C), (e)(1)(D), (f)(1), (g)(1), and (h)(1), as applicable.
  
  - ii) From May 1 through September 30, comply with a combined NO<sub>x</sub> average emission rate of no more than 0.10 lb/mmBtu. Averaging is only allowed among EGUs in the same MPS Group.

558  
559  
560  
561  
562  
563  
564  
565  
566  
567  
568  
569  
570  
571  
572  
573  
574  
575  
576  
577  
578  
579  
580  
581  
582  
583  
584  
585  
586  
587  
588  
589  
590  
591  
592  
593  
594  
595  
596  
597  
598  
599  
600

- 2) SO<sub>2</sub> Emission Standards-
  - A) Beginning in calendar year 2013 and continuing in calendar year 2014, for the EGUs in each MPS Group, the owner and operator of the EGUs must comply with an overall SO<sub>2</sub> annual emission rate of 0.33 lb/million Btu or a rate equivalent to 44 percent of the Base Rate of SO<sub>2</sub> emissions, whichever is more stringent.
  - B) Beginning in calendar year 2015 and continuing through calendar year 2018 in each calendar year thereafter, for the EGUs in each MPS Group ~~Grouping~~, the owner and operator of the EGUs must comply with an overall annual emission rate for SO<sub>2</sub> of 0.25 lbs/million Btu or a rate equivalent to 35 percent of the Base Rate of SO<sub>2</sub> emissions, whichever is more stringent.
  - C) Except as otherwise provided in subsections (f), (g), and (h), beginning in calendar year 2019 and continuing in each calendar year thereafter, the owner and operator of the EGUs in an MPS Group must not cause or allow to be discharged into the atmosphere combined annual SO<sub>2</sub> emissions in excess of 44,920 tons from all EGUs.
  - D) Beginning in calendar year 2019 and continuing in each calendar year thereafter, the owner and operator of Joppa Units 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6 must not cause or allow to be discharged into the atmosphere combined annual SO<sub>2</sub> emissions in excess of 19,860 tons from such EGUs.
- 3) ~~Ameren MPS Group Multi-Pollutant Standard~~
  - A) ~~Notwithstanding the provisions of subsections (e)(1) and (2) of this Section, this subsection (e)(3) applies to the Ameren MPS Group as described in the notice of intent submitted by Ameren Energy Resources in accordance with subsection (b) of this Section.~~
  - B) ~~NO<sub>x</sub> Emission Standards~~
    - i) ~~Beginning in the 2010 ozone season and continuing in each ozone season thereafter, for the EGUs in the Ameren MPS Group, the owner and operator of the EGUs must comply with an overall NO<sub>x</sub> seasonal emission rate of no more than 0.11 lb/million Btu.~~

- 601  
602  
603  
604  
605  
606  
607  
608  
609  
610  
611  
612  
613  
614  
615  
616  
617  
618  
619  
620  
621  
622  
623  
624  
625  
626  
627  
628  
629  
630  
631  
632  
633  
634  
635  
636  
637  
638  
639  
640  
641  
642  
643
- ii) Beginning in calendar year 2010 and continuing in calendar year 2011, for the EGUs in the Ameren MPS Group, the owner and operator of the EGUs must comply with an overall NO<sub>x</sub> annual emission rate of no more than 0.14 lb/million Btu.
  - iii) Beginning in calendar year 2012 and continuing in each calendar year thereafter, for the EGUs in the Ameren MPS Group, the owner and operator of the EGUs must comply with an overall NO<sub>x</sub> annual emission rate of no more than 0.11 lb/million Btu.
- C) SO<sub>2</sub> Emission Standards
- i) Beginning in calendar year 2010 and continuing in each calendar year through 2013, for the EGUs in the Ameren MPS Group, the owner and operator of the EGUs must comply with an overall SO<sub>2</sub> annual emission rate of 0.50 lb/million Btu.
  - ii) In calendar year 2014, for the EGUs in the Ameren MPS Group, the owner and operator of the EGUs must comply with an overall SO<sub>2</sub> annual emission rate of 0.43 lb/million Btu.
  - iii) Beginning in calendar year 2015 and continuing in calendar year 2016, for the EGUs in the Ameren MPS Group, the owner and operator of the EGUs must comply with an overall SO<sub>2</sub> annual emission rate of 0.25 lb/million Btu.
  - iv) Beginning in calendar year 2017 and continuing in each calendar year thereafter, for the EGUs in the Ameren MPS Group, the owner and operator of the EGUs must comply with an overall SO<sub>2</sub> annual emission rate of 0.23 lb/million Btu.
- 4) Compliance with the NO<sub>x</sub> and SO<sub>2</sub> emission standards must be demonstrated in accordance with Sections 225.310, 225.410, and 225.510. The owner or operator of EGUs must complete the demonstration of compliance before March 1 of the following year for annual standards and before November 1 for seasonal standards, by which date a compliance report must be submitted to the Agency.

644  
645  
646  
647  
648  
649  
650  
651  
652  
653  
654  
655  
656  
657  
658  
659  
660  
661  
662  
663  
664  
665  
666  
667  
668  
669  
670  
671  
672  
673  
674  
675  
676  
677  
678  
679  
680  
681  
682  
683  
684  
685  
686

f) Transfer of EGUs in an MPS Group

1) If EGUs in an MPS Group are transferred to a different owner:

A) For the MPS Group from which EGUs are transferred: The combined emissions limitations for the MPS Group set forth in this Section, as applicable, must be adjusted by subtracting from those limitations the applicable allocation amounts set forth in Columns A, B, and C in subsection (f)(2) that are attributable to the transferred EGUs. The owner and operator of the MPS Group must comply with the adjusted emissions limitations beginning with the year in which the transfer occurs.

B) For a new MPS Group consisting of the acquired EGUs:

i) The owner and operator of the EGUs in an MPS Group must not cause or allow to be discharged into the atmosphere combined annual NO<sub>x</sub> emissions in excess of the applicable annual NO<sub>x</sub> limitation from all EGUs. The applicable annual NO<sub>x</sub> limitation shall be the sum of the allocation amounts attributable to all EGUs in the MPS Group set forth in Column A of subsection (f)(2).

ii) From May 1 through September 30, the owner and operator of the EGUs in an MPS Group must not cause or allow to be discharged into the atmosphere combined NO<sub>x</sub> emissions in excess of the applicable seasonal NO<sub>x</sub> limitation from all EGUs. The applicable seasonal NO<sub>x</sub> limitation shall be the sum of the allocation amounts attributable to all EGUs in the MPS Group set forth in Column B of subsection (f)(2).

iii) The owner and operator of the EGUs in an MPS Group must not cause or allow to be discharged into the atmosphere combined annual SO<sub>2</sub> emissions in excess of the applicable annual SO<sub>2</sub> limitation from all EGUs. The applicable annual SO<sub>2</sub> limitation shall be the sum of the unit allocation amounts attributable to all EGUs in the MPS Group set forth in Column C of subsection (f)(2).

iv) Notwithstanding subsections (f)(1)(B)(i) through (iii), if all the EGUs set forth under subsection (a)(4)(A) are transferred to the same owner on the same date, the owner



687  
688  
689  
690  
691  
692  
693  
694  
695  
696  
697  
698  
699  
700  
701  
702  
703  
704  
705  
706

and operator of the EGUs in the new MPS Group must comply with the emission limitations under subsection (e); the allocation amounts in subsection (f)(2) shall not apply.

- C) The owner and operator of the EGUs as of the last day of the applicable compliance period must demonstrate compliance with the emission standards of this Section for the entire applicable compliance period. In determining compliance, such owner and operator must include in their calculations emissions from the EGUs for the entire applicable compliance period; the prior owner and operator shall not include in their calculations emissions from the EGUs for the applicable compliance period.
- D) Nothing in this subsection (f) shall be construed to relieve owners and operators of EGUs in an MPS Group from any of the other requirements set forth in this Section, including the mercury standards in subsection (d).

2) Allocation Amounts in the Event of Transfer of EGUs

	<u>Column A.</u>	<u>Column B.</u>	<u>Column C.</u>
	<u>No<sub>x</sub> Allocation Amount (TPY in the Event of Transfer</u>	<u>NO<sub>x</sub> Allocation Amount (May1 through Sept 30 Tons) in the Event of Transfer</u>	<u>SO<sub>2</sub> Allocation Amount (TPY) in the Event of Transfer</u>
A) <u>Baldwin</u>	<u>5,400</u>	<u>2,700</u>	<u>4,900</u>
B) <u>Havana</u>	<u>1,620</u>	<u>810</u>	<u>1,225</u>
C) <u>Hennepin</u>	<u>1,350</u>	<u>675</u>	<u>4,900</u>
D) <u>Coffeen</u>	<u>1,800</u>	<u>900</u>	<u>200</u>
E) <u>Duck Creek</u>	<u>1,260</u>	<u>630</u>	<u>200</u>
F) <u>Edwards</u>	<u>2,700</u>	<u>1,350</u>	<u>8,200</u>
G) <u>Joppa</u>	<u>4,680</u>	<u>2,340</u>	<u>14,700</u>
H) <u>Newton</u>	<u>2,430</u>	<u>1,215</u>	<u>8,200</u>

707  
708  
709  
710  
711  
712  
713  
714  
715  
716  
717  
718  
719  
720  
721  
722  
723  
724  
725  
726  
727  
728  
729  
730  
731  
732  
733  
734  
735  
736  
737  
738  
739  
740  
741  
742  
743  
744  
745  
746  
747  
748  
749

3) If EGUs in an MPS Group are transferred to a different owner:

A) The transferring owner must notify the Agency's Bureau of Air, Compliance Section, in writing within seven days after the date of transfer. The notification must include the following information:

- i) Name and address of the transferring owner and operator;
- ii) List of the EGUs transferred;
- iii) For the remaining EGUs in the MPS Group, calculations pursuant to subsection (f)(1)(A) demonstrating the adjusted combined annual NO<sub>x</sub> emissions limitation, the adjusted combined NO<sub>x</sub> emissions limitation from May 1 through September 30, and the adjusted combined annual SO<sub>2</sub> emissions limitation that are applicable to the MPS Group;
- iv) Name and address of the new owner and operator; and
- v) Date of transfer.

B) The acquiring owner must notify the Agency's Bureau of Air, Compliance Section, in writing within seven days after the date of transfer. The notification must include the following information:

- i) Name and address of the acquiring owner and operator;
- ii) Name and address of the transferring owner and operator;
- iii) List of the EGUs acquired;
- iv) Calculations pursuant to subsection (f)(1)(B) demonstrating the combined annual NO<sub>x</sub> emissions limitation, the combined NO<sub>x</sub> emissions limitation from May 1 through September 30, and the combined annual SO<sub>2</sub> emissions limitation that are applicable to the acquiring owner and operator's MPS Group; and
- v) Date of transfer.

g) Permanent Shutdown of EGUs in an MPS Group

750  
751  
752  
753  
754  
755  
756  
757  
758  
759  
760  
761  
762  
763  
764  
765  
766  
767  
768  
769  
770  
771  
772  
773  
774

- 1) If one or more EGUs in an MPS Group are permanently shut down:
- A) Such EGU or EGUs are no longer part of an MPS Group and no longer subject to the requirements of this Section.
  - B) The combined emissions limitations for the MPS Group set forth in this Section, as applicable, must be adjusted by subtracting from those limitations the applicable allocation amounts set forth in Columns A, B, and C in subsection (g)(2) that are attributable to the shutdown EGU or EGUs. The owner and operator of the MPS Group must comply with the adjusted emissions limitations, beginning with the compliance period or periods during which the permanent shutdown occurs. For the purposes of this Section, "permanent shutdown" occurs on the date the owner or operator of the EGUs submits a written request to the Agency to modify its operating permit to reflect the shutdown of the EGU or EGUs, or to withdraw the permit for the source.
  - C) Nothing in this subsection (g) shall be construed to relieve owners and operators of EGUs in an MPS Group from any of the other requirements set forth in this Section, including the mercury standards in subsection (d).

2) Allocation Amounts in the Event of Shutdown of EGUs

	<u>Column A.</u>	<u>Column B.</u>	<u>Column C.</u>
	<u>No<sub>x</sub> Allocation Amount (TPY) for Shutdown</u>	<u>NO<sub>x</sub> Allocation 1 through Sept 30 (Tons) for Shutdown</u>	<u>SO<sub>2</sub> Allocation Amount (TPY) for Shutdown</u>
A) <u>Baldwin 1</u>	<u>1,850</u>	<u>920</u>	<u>1,680</u>
B) <u>Baldwin 2</u>	<u>1,710</u>	<u>860</u>	<u>1,560</u>
C) <u>Baldwin 3</u>	<u>1,840</u>	<u>920</u>	<u>1,660</u>
D) <u>Havana 9</u>	<u>1,620</u>	<u>800</u>	<u>1,225</u>
E) <u>Hennenpin 1</u>	<u>320</u>	<u>160</u>	<u>1,180</u>
F) <u>Hennenpin 2</u>	<u>1,030</u>	<u>500</u>	<u>3,720</u>

G) <u>Coffeen 1</u>	<u>670</u>	<u>340</u>	<u>80</u>
H) <u>Coffeen 2</u>	<u>1,130</u>	<u>560</u>	<u>120</u>
I) <u>Duck Creek 1</u>	<u>1,260</u>	<u>640</u>	<u>200</u>
J) <u>Edwards 2</u>	<u>1,130</u>	<u>560</u>	<u>3,440</u>
K) <u>Edward 3</u>	<u>1,570</u>	<u>780</u>	<u>4,760</u>
L) <u>Joppa 1</u>	<u>780</u>	<u>390</u>	<u>2,450</u>
M) <u>Joppa 2</u>	<u>780</u>	<u>390</u>	<u>2,450</u>
N) <u>Joppa 3</u>	<u>780</u>	<u>390</u>	<u>2,450</u>
O) <u>Joppa 4</u>	<u>780</u>	<u>390</u>	<u>2,450</u>
P) <u>Joppa 5</u>	<u>780</u>	<u>390</u>	<u>2,450</u>
Q) <u>Joppa 6</u>	<u>780</u>	<u>390</u>	<u>2,450</u>
R) <u>Newton 1</u>	<u>2,430</u>	<u>1,220</u>	<u>8,200</u>

775  
776  
777  
778  
779  
780  
781  
782  
783  
784  
785  
786  
787  
788  
789  
790  
791  
792  
793

- 3) If one or more EGUs in an MPS Group are permanently shut down, the owner must notify the Agency's Bureau of Air, Compliance Section, in writing within seven days after the date of shutdown. Such notification must include the following information:
- A) Name and address of the owner and operator;
  - B) List of the EGUs permanently shut down;
  - C) For the remaining EGUs in the MPS Group, calculations pursuant to subsection (g)(1)(B) demonstrating the adjusted combined annual NO<sub>x</sub> emissions limitation, the adjusted combined NO<sub>x</sub> emissions limitation from May 1 through September 30, and the adjusted combined annual SO<sub>2</sub> emissions limitation that are applicable to the MPS Group; and
  - D) Date of permanent shutdown.

794  
795  
796  
797  
798  
799  
800  
801  
802  
803  
804  
805  
806  
807  
808  
809  
810  
811  
812  
813  
814  
815  
816  
817

h) Temporary shutdown of EGUs in an MPS Group

1) If one or more EGUs in an MPS Group are temporarily shut down over an entire compliance period or periods:

A) The combined emissions limitations for the MPS Group set forth in this Section, as applicable, must be adjusted by subtracting from those limitations the applicable allocation amounts set forth in Columns A, B, and C in subsection (h)(2) that are attributable to the temporary shutdown of EGU or EGUs.

B) The owner and operator of the MPS Group must comply with the adjusted emissions limitations, beginning with the compliance period or periods during which the temporary shutdown occurs. The adjusted emissions limitations will no longer apply if the EGU or EGUs resume operation.

C) Nothing in this subsection (h) shall be construed to relieve owners and operators of EGUs in an MPS Group from any of the other requirements set forth in this Section, including the mercury standards in subsection (d).

2) Allocation amounts in the event of temporary shutdown of EGUs:

	<u>Column A.</u>	<u>Column B.</u>	<u>Column C.</u>
	<u>NO<sub>x</sub> Allocation Amount (TPY) for Temporary Shutdown</u>	<u>NO<sub>x</sub> Allocation Amount (May 1 through Sept 30 Tons) for Temporary Shutdown</u>	<u>SO<sub>2</sub> Allocation Amount (TPY) for Temporary Shutdown</u>
A) <u>Baldwin 1</u>	<u>1,850</u>	<u>920</u>	<u>1,680</u>
B) <u>Baldwin 2</u>	<u>1,710</u>	<u>860</u>	<u>1,560</u>
C) <u>Baldwin 3</u>	<u>1,840</u>	<u>920</u>	<u>1,660</u>
D) <u>Havana 9</u>	<u>1,620</u>	<u>800</u>	<u>1,225</u>
E) <u>Hennenpin 1</u>	<u>320</u>	<u>160</u>	<u>1,180</u>
F) <u>Hennenpin 2</u>	<u>1,030</u>	<u>500</u>	<u>3,720</u>

G)	<u>Coffeen 1</u>	<u>670</u>	<u>340</u>	<u>80</u>
H)	<u>Coffeen 2</u>	<u>1,130</u>	<u>560</u>	<u>120</u>
I)	<u>Duck Creek 1</u>	<u>1,260</u>	<u>640</u>	<u>200</u>
J)	<u>Edwards 2</u>	<u>1,130</u>	<u>560</u>	<u>3,440</u>
K)	<u>Edward 3</u>	<u>1,570</u>	<u>780</u>	<u>4,760</u>
L)	<u>Joppa 1</u>	<u>780</u>	<u>390</u>	<u>2,450</u>
M)	<u>Joppa 2</u>	<u>780</u>	<u>390</u>	<u>2,450</u>
N)	<u>Joppa 3</u>	<u>780</u>	<u>390</u>	<u>2,450</u>
O)	<u>Joppa 4</u>	<u>780</u>	<u>390</u>	<u>2,450</u>
P)	<u>Joppa 5</u>	<u>780</u>	<u>390</u>	<u>2,450</u>
Q)	<u>Joppa 6</u>	<u>780</u>	<u>390</u>	<u>2,450</u>
R)	<u>Newton 1</u>	<u>2,430</u>	<u>1,220</u>	<u>8,200</u>

818  
819  
820  
821  
822  
823  
824  
825  
826  
827  
828  
829  
830  
831  
832  
833  
834  
835  
836

3) If one or more EGUs in an MPS Group are temporarily shut down over an entire compliance period, the owner or operator must notify the Agency's Bureau of Air, Compliance Section, in writing within seven days after the start date of shutdown. Such notification must include the following information:

A) Name and address of the owner and operator;

B) List of the EGUs temporarily shut down;

C) For the remaining EGUs in the MPS Group, calculations pursuant to subsection (g)(1)(B) demonstrating the adjusted combined annual NO<sub>x</sub> emissions limitation, the adjusted combined NO<sub>x</sub> emissions limitation from May 1 through September 30, and the adjusted combined annual SO<sub>2</sub> emissions limitation that are applicable to the MPS Group during the temporary shutdown of one or more EGUs; and

837  
838  
839  
840  
841  
842  
843  
844  
845  
846  
847  
848  
849  
850  
851  
852  
853  
854  
855  
856  
857  
858  
859  
860  
861  
862  
863  
864  
865  
866  
867  
868  
869  
870  
871  
872  
873  
874  
875  
876  
877  
878

D) Start date and duration of temporary shutdown.

i) f)

Requirements for NO<sub>x</sub> and SO<sub>2</sub> Allowances.

- 1) The owner or operator of EGUs in an MPS Group must not sell or trade to any person or otherwise exchange with or give to any person NO<sub>x</sub> allowances allocated to the EGUs in the MPS Group for vintage years 2012 and beyond that would otherwise be available for sale, trade, or exchange as a result of actions taken to comply with the standards in subsection (e) ~~of this Section~~. Such allowances that are not retired for compliance must be surrendered to the Agency on an annual basis, beginning in calendar year 2013. This provision does not apply to the use, sale, exchange, gift, or trade of allowances among the EGUs in an MPS Group.
- 2) The owners or operators of EGUs in an MPS Group must not sell or trade to any person or otherwise exchange with or give to any person SO<sub>2</sub> allowances allocated to the EGUs in the MPS Group for vintage years 2013 and beyond that would otherwise be available for sale or trade as a result of actions taken to comply with the standards in subsection (e) ~~of this Section~~. Such allowances that are not retired for compliance, or otherwise surrendered pursuant to a consent decree to which the State of Illinois is a party, must be surrendered to the Agency on an annual basis, beginning in calendar year 2014. This provision does not apply to the use, sale, exchange, gift, or trade of allowances among the EGUs in an MPS Group.
- 3) The provisions of this subsection (i) ~~f)~~ do not restrict or inhibit the sale or trading of allowances that become available from one or more EGUs in a MPS Group as a result of holding allowances that represent over-compliance with the NO<sub>x</sub> or SO<sub>2</sub> standard in subsection (e) ~~of this Section~~, once such a standard becomes effective, whether such over-compliance results from control equipment, fuel changes, changes in the method of operation, unit shut downs, or other reasons.
- 4) For purposes of this subsection (i) ~~f)~~, NO<sub>x</sub> and SO<sub>2</sub> allowances mean allowances necessary for compliance with Sections 225.310, 225.410, or 225.510, 40 CFR 72, or Subparts AA and AAAA of 40 CFR 96, or any future federal NO<sub>x</sub> or SO<sub>2</sub> emissions trading programs that modify or replace these programs. This Section does not prohibit the owner or operator of EGUs in an MPS Group from purchasing or otherwise obtaining allowances from other sources as allowed by law for purposes of

879  
880  
881  
882  
883  
884  
885  
886  
887  
888  
889  
890  
891  
892  
893  
894  
895  
896  
897  
898  
899  
900  
901  
902  
903  
904  
905  
906  
907  
908  
909  
910  
911  
912  
913  
914  
915  
916  
917  
918  
919  
920  
921

complying with federal or state requirements, except as specifically set forth in this Section.

- 5) By March 1, 2010, and continuing each year thereafter, the owner or operator of EGUs in an MPS Group must submit a report to the Agency that demonstrates compliance with the requirements of this subsection (i)(~~f~~) for the previous calendar year, and which includes identification of any allowances that have been surrendered to the USEPA or to the Agency and any allowances that were sold, gifted, used, exchanged, or traded because they became available due to over-compliance. All allowances that are required to be surrendered must be surrendered by August 31, unless USEPA has not yet deducted the allowances from the previous year. A final report will be submitted to the Agency by August 31 of each year, verifying that the actions described in the initial report have taken place or, if such actions have not taken place, an explanation of all changes that have occurred and the reasons for such changes. If USEPA has not deducted the allowances from the previous year by August 31, the final report will be due, and all allowances required to be surrendered must be surrendered, within 30 days after such deduction occurs.

- g) ~~Notwithstanding 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.146(hhh), until an EGU has complied with the applicable emission standards of subsections (d) and (e) of this Section for 12 months, the owner or operator of the EGU must obtain a construction permit for any new or modified air pollution control equipment that it proposes to construct for control of emissions of mercury, NO<sub>x</sub>, or SO<sub>2</sub>.~~

j) Recordkeeping

On and after January 1, 2019, and continuing each year thereafter, the owner and operator of the EGUs in an MPS Group must keep and maintain all records necessary to demonstrate compliance with this Section, including but not limited to those listed in subsections (j)(1) and (j)(2). Copies of such records must be kept at the source and maintained for at least five years from the date the document is created and must be submitted by the owner and operator to the Agency within 30 days after receipt of a written request by the Agency.

- 1) All emissions monitoring information gathered in accordance with 40 CFR 75.

- 2) Copies of all reports and compliance certifications required under subsection (k) of this Section.

k) Reporting



922  
923  
924  
925  
926  
927  
928  
929  
930  
931  
932  
933  
934  
935  
936  
937  
938  
939  
940  
941  
942  
943  
944  
945  
946  
947  
948  
949  
950  
951  
952  
953  
954  
955  
956  
957  
958  
959  
960  
961  
962  
963  
964

- 1) Prior to January 1, 2019, compliance with the NO<sub>x</sub> and SO<sub>2</sub> emission standards must be demonstrated in accordance with Sections 225.310, 225.410, and 225.510. The owner or operator of EGUs must complete the demonstration of compliance before March 1 of the following year for annual standards and before November 1 for seasonal standards, by which date a compliance report must be submitted to the Agency.
  
- 2) On and after January 1, 2019, and continuing each year thereafter, the owner and operator of the EGUs in an MPS Group must demonstrate compliance with the applicable requirements set forth in this subsection (k)(2).
  - A) Beginning in 2020, and continuing each year thereafter, the owner and operator of EGUs in an MPS Group must submit to the Agency's Bureau of Air, Compliance Section, a report demonstrating compliance with the annual emissions standards in subsections (e)(1)(C), (e)(2)(C), (e)(2)(D), and (f)(1), as applicable, and with the requirements of subsection (e)(1)(E)(i), as applicable, on or before March 1 of each year. The compliance report must include the following for the preceding calendar year:
    - i) Actual emissions of each pollutant, expressed in tons, for each individual EGU in the MPS Group.
    - ii) Combined actual emissions of each pollutant, expressed in tons, for all EGUs in the MPS Group.
    - iii) Combined actual emissions of SO<sub>2</sub>, expressed in tons, for all Joppa EGUs.
    - iv) A statement indicating whether each existing SCR control system on Baldwin Units 1 and 2, Coffeen Units 1 and 2, Duck Creek Unit 1, E.D. Edwards Unit 3, and Havana Unit 9 was operated in accordance with good operating practices and at all times when the unit it serves was in operation, consistent with the technological limitations, manufacturers' specifications, and good engineering and maintenance practices for the SCR control system.
    - v) A statement indicating whether the EGUs in an MPS Group were operated in compliance with the requirements of this Section.

965  
966  
967  
968  
969  
970  
971  
972  
973  
974  
975  
976  
977  
978  
979  
980  
981  
982  
983  
984  
985  
986  
987  
988  
989  
990  
991  
992  
993  
994  
995  
996  
997  
998  
999  
1000  
1001  
1002  
1003  
1004  
1005  
1006  
1007

vi) A certification by a responsible official that states the following:

I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations.

B) By November 1 of each year, the owner and operator of EGUs in an MPS Group must submit to the Agency's Bureau of Air, Compliance Section, a report demonstrating compliance with the seasonal emissions standards under subsections (e)(1)(D), (e)(1)(E)(ii), and (f)(1), as applicable. The compliance report must include the following for the preceding May 1 through September 30:

i) Actual emissions of NO<sub>x</sub>, expressed in tons, for each individual EGU in the MPS Group.

ii) Combined actual emissions of NO<sub>x</sub>, expressed in tons, of all EGUs in the MPS Group.

iii) NO<sub>x</sub> average emission rate (lbs/mmBtu) for each of Baldwin Units 1 and 2; Coffeen Units 1 and 2; Duck Creek Unit 1; E.D. Edwards Unit 3; and Havana Unit 9, as applicable.

iv) Combined NO<sub>x</sub> average emission rate (lbs/mmBtu) for Baldwin Units 1 and 2; Coffeen Units 1 and 2; Duck Creek Unit 1; E.D. Edwards Unit 3; and Havana Unit 9, as applicable under subsection (e)(1)(E)(ii).

v) A statement indicating whether the EGUs in an MPS Group were operated in compliance with the requirements of this Section.

1008  
1009  
1010  
1011  
1012  
1013  
1014  
1015  
1016  
1017  
1018  
1019  
1020  
1021  
1022  
1023  
1024  
1025  
1026  
1027  
1028  
1029  
1030  
1031  
1032  
1033  
1034  
1035  
1036  
1037  
1038  
1039  
1040

vi) A certification by a responsible official that states the following:

I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations.

3) For each EGU in an MPS Group, the owner or operator must notify the Agency of deviations from any of the requirements of this Section within 30 days after discovery of the deviations. At a minimum, these notifications must include a description of the deviations, a discussion of the possible cause of the deviations, and a description of any corrective actions and preventative measures taken.

4) Within 30 days after the beginning of a period during which the SCR control system on any of Baldwin Unit 1, Baldwin Unit 2, Coffeen Unit 1, Coffeen Unit 2, Duck Creek Unit 1, E.D. Edwards Unit 3, or Havana Unit 9 is not operated when the EGU it serves is in operation, the owner and operator must notify the Agency's Bureau of Air, Compliance Section, in writing. This notification must include, at a minimum, a description of why the SCR control system was not operated, the time frames during which the SCR control system was not operated, and the steps taken to minimize emissions during those time frames.

(Source: Amended at 43 Ill. Reg. \_\_\_\_\_, effective \_\_\_\_\_)

TITLE 35: ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION  
SUBTITLE B: AIR POLLUTION  
CHAPTER I: POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD  
SUBCHAPTER c: EMISSION STANDARDS AND LIMITATIONS  
FOR STATIONARY SOURCES

PART 225  
CONTROL OF EMISSIONS FROM LARGE COMBUSTION SOURCES

SUBPART A: GENERAL PROVISIONS

Section

225.100 Severability  
225.120 Abbreviations and Acronyms  
225.130 Definitions  
225.140 Incorporations by Reference  
225.150 Commence Commercial Operation

SUBPART B: CONTROL OF MERCURY EMISSIONS  
FROM COAL-FIRED ELECTRIC GENERATING UNITS

Section

225.200 Purpose  
225.202 Measurement Methods  
225.205 Applicability  
225.210 Compliance Requirements  
225.220 Clean Air Act Permit Program (CAAPP) Permit Requirements  
225.230 Emission Standards for EGUs at Existing Sources  
225.232 Averaging Demonstrations for Existing Sources  
225.233 Multi-Pollutant ~~Standards~~~~Standard~~Standards (MPS)  
225.234 Temporary Technology-Based Standard for EGUs at Existing  
Sources  
225.235 Units Scheduled for Permanent Shut Down  
225.237 Emission Standards for New Sources with EGUs  
225.238 Temporary Technology-Based Standard for New Sources with EGUs  
225.239 Periodic Emissions Testing Alternative Requirements  
225.240 General Monitoring and Reporting Requirements  
225.250 Initial Certification and Recertification Procedures for  
Emissions Monitoring  
225.260 Out of Control Periods and Data Availability for Emission  
Monitors  
225.261 Additional Requirements to Provide Heat Input Data  
225.263 Monitoring of Gross Electrical Output  
225.265 Coal Analysis for Input Mercury Levels  
225.270 Notifications  
225.290 Recordkeeping and Reporting  
225.291 Combined Pollutant Standard: Purpose  
225.292 Applicability of the Combined Pollutant Standard  
225.293 Combined Pollutant Standard: Notice of Intent  
225.294 Combined Pollutant Standard: Control Technology Requirements  
and Emissions Standards for Mercury

225.295 Combined Pollutant Standard: Emissions Standards for NOx and SO2  
225.296 Combined Pollutant Standard: Control Technology Requirements for NOx, SO2, and PM Emissions  
225.297 Combined Pollutant Standard: Permanent Shut-Downs  
225.298 Combined Pollutant Standard: Requirements for NOx and SO2 Allowances  
225.299 Combined Pollutant Standard: Clean Air Act Requirements

SUBPART C: CLEAN AIR ACT INTERSTATE  
RULE (CAIR) SO2 TRADING PROGRAM

Section

225.300 Purpose  
225.305 Applicability  
225.310 Compliance Requirements  
225.315 Appeal Procedures  
225.320 Permit Requirements  
225.325 Trading Program

SUBPART D: CAIR NOx ANNUAL TRADING PROGRAM

Section

225.400 Purpose  
225.405 Applicability  
225.410 Compliance Requirements  
225.415 Appeal Procedures  
225.420 Permit Requirements  
225.425 Annual Trading Budget  
225.430 Timing for Annual Allocations  
225.435 Methodology for Calculating Annual Allocations  
225.440 Annual Allocations  
225.445 New Unit Set-Aside (NUSA)  
225.450 Monitoring, Recordkeeping and Reporting Requirements for Gross Electrical Output and Useful Thermal Energy  
225.455 Clean Air Set-Aside (CASA)  
225.460 Energy Efficiency and Conservation, Renewable Energy, and Clean Technology Projects  
225.465 Clean Air Set-Aside (CASA) Allowances  
225.470 Clean Air Set-Aside (CASA) Applications  
225.475 Agency Action on Clean Air Set-Aside (CASA) Applications  
225.480 Compliance Supplement Pool

SUBPART E: CAIR NOx OZONE SEASON TRADING PROGRAM

Section

225.500 Purpose  
225.505 Applicability  
225.510 Compliance Requirements  
225.515 Appeal Procedures  
225.520 Permit Requirements  
225.525 Ozone Season Trading Budget

- 225.530 Timing for Ozone Season Allocations
- 225.535 Methodology for Calculating Ozone Season Allocations
- 225.540 Ozone Season Allocations
- 225.545 New Unit Set-Aside (NUSA)
- 225.550 Monitoring, Recordkeeping and Reporting Requirements for Gross Electrical Output and Useful Thermal Energy
- 225.555 Clean Air Set-Aside (CASA)
- 225.560 Energy Efficiency and Conservation, Renewable Energy, and Clean Technology Projects
- 225.565 Clean Air Set-Aside (CASA) Allowances
- 225.570 Clean Air Set-Aside (CASA) Applications
- 225.575 Agency Action on Clean Air Set-Aside (CASA) Applications

SUBPART F: COMBINED POLLUTANT STANDARDS

Section

- 225.600 Purpose (Repealed)
- 225.605 Applicability (Repealed)
- 225.610 Notice of Intent (Repealed)
- 225.615 Control Technology Requirements and Emissions Standards for Mercury (Repealed)
- 225.620 Emissions Standards for NOx and SO2 (Repealed)
- 225.625 Control Technology Requirements for NOx, SO2, and PM Emissions (Repealed)
- 225.630 Permanent Shut Downs (Repealed)
- 225.635 Requirements for CAIR SO2, CAIR NOx, and CAIR NOx Ozone Season Allowances (Repealed)
- 225.640 Clean Air Act Requirements (Repealed)

225.APPENDIX A Specified EGUs for Purposes of the CPS (Coal-Fired Boilers as of July 1, 2006)

- 225.APPENDIX B Continuous Emission Monitoring Systems for Mercury
  - 225.EXHIBIT A Specifications and Test Procedures
  - 225.EXHIBIT B Quality Assurance and Quality Control Procedures
  - 225.EXHIBIT C Conversion Procedures
  - 225.EXHIBIT D Quality Assurance and Operating Procedures for Sorbent Trap Monitoring Systems

AUTHORITY: Implementing and authorized by Section 27 of the Environmental Protection Act [415 ILCS 5/27].

SOURCE: Adopted in R06-25 at 31 Ill. Reg. 129, effective December 21, 2006; amended in R06-26 at 31 Ill. Reg. 12864, effective August 31, 2007; amended in R09-10 at 33 Ill. Reg. 10427, effective June 26, 2009; amended in R15-21 at 39 Ill. Reg. 16225, effective December 7, 2015; amended in R18-20 at 43 Ill. Reg. \_\_\_\_\_, effective \_\_\_\_\_.

SUBPART B: CONTROL OF MERCURY EMISSIONS FROM COAL-FIRED ELECTRIC GENERATING UNITS

Section 225.233 Multi-Pollutant Standards (MPS)

a) ~~General-~~

1) As an alternative to compliance with the emissions standards of Section 225.230(a), the owner of eligible EGUs may elect for those EGUs to demonstrate compliance pursuant to this Section, which establishes control requirements and standards for emissions of NOx and SO2, as well as for emissions of mercury.

2) For the purpose of this Section, the following requirements apply:

A) An eligible EGU is an EGU that is located in Illinois and which commenced commercial operation on or before December 31, 2004; and

B) Ownership of an eligible EGU is determined based on direct ownership, by the holding of a majority interest in a company that owns the EGU or EGUs, or by the common ownership of the company that owns the EGU, whether through a parent-subsidiary relationship, as a sister corporation, or as an affiliated corporation with the same parent corporation, provided that the owner has the right or authority to submit a CAAPP application on behalf of the EGU.

3) The owner of one or more EGUs electing to demonstrate compliance with this Subpart B pursuant to this Section must submit an application for a CAAPP permit modification to the Agency, as provided in Section 225.220, that includes the information specified in subsection (b) ~~of this Section~~ and which clearly states the owner's election to demonstrate compliance pursuant to this Section 225.233.

A) If the owner of one or more EGUs elects to demonstrate compliance with this Subpart pursuant to this Section, then all EGUs it owns in Illinois as of July 1, 2006, as defined in subsection (a)(2)(B) ~~of this Section~~, must be thereafter subject to the standards and control requirements of this Section, except as provided in subsection (a)(3)(B). Such EGUs must be referred to as a Multi-Pollutant Standard (MPS) Group.

B) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the owner may exclude from an MPS Group any EGU scheduled for permanent shutdown that the owner so designates in its CAAPP application required to be submitted pursuant to subsection (a)(3) ~~of this Section~~, with compliance for such units to be achieved by means of Section 225.235.

4) Notwithstanding any contrary provision in this subsection (a), on and after January 1, 2019:

A) The following EGUs shall be merged into a new MPS Group: Baldwin Units 1, 2, and 3; Coffeen Units 1 and 2; Duck Creek Unit 1; E.D. Edwards Units 2 and 3; Havana Unit 9; Hennepin Units 1 and 2; Joppa Units 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6; and Newton Unit 1. If one or more of the above EGUs are transferred to a different owner, such EGU or EGUs will become a separate MPS Group on and after the date of transfer. For

purposes of this Section, "transfer" means sale, conveyance, transfer, or other change in ownership of an EGU; and

B) No other EGUs except for those listed in subsection (a)(4)(A) ~~of this Section~~ are subject to the requirements of this Section.

545) When an EGU is subject to the requirements of this Section, the requirements apply to all owners or operators of the EGU.

b) Notice of Intent.

The owner of one or more EGUs that intends to comply with this Subpart B by means of this Section must notify the Agency of its intention by December 31, 2007. The following information must accompany the notification:

1) The identification of each EGU that will be complying with this Subpart B by means of the multi-pollutant standards contained in this Section, with evidence that the owner has identified all EGUs that it owned in Illinois as of July 1, 2006 and which commenced commercial operation on or before December 31, 2004;

2) If an EGU identified in subsection (b)(1) ~~of this Section~~ is also owned or operated by a person different than the owner submitting the notice of intent, a demonstration that the submitter has the right to commit the EGU or authorization from the responsible official for the EGU accepting the application;

3) The Base Emission Rates for the EGUs, with copies of supporting data and calculations;

4) A summary of the current control devices installed and operating on each EGU and identification of the additional control devices that will likely be needed for the each EGU to comply with emission control requirements of this Section, including identification of each EGU in the MPS group that will be addressed by subsection (c)(1)(B) ~~of this Section~~, with information showing that the eligibility criteria for this subsection (b) are satisfied; and

5) Identification of each EGU that is scheduled for permanent shut down, as provided by Section 225.235, which will not be part of the MPS Group and which will not be demonstrating compliance with this Subpart B pursuant to this Section.

c) Control Technology Requirements for Emissions of Mercury.

1) Requirements for EGUs in an MPS Group.

A) For each EGU in an MPS Group other than an EGU that is addressed by subsection (c)(1)(B) ~~of this Section~~ for the period beginning July 1, 2009 (or December 31, 2009 for an EGU for which an SO2 scrubber or fabric filter is being installed to be in operation by December 31, 2009), and ending on December 31, 2014 (or such earlier date that the



EGU is subject to the mercury emission standard in subsection (d)(1) ~~of this Section~~, the owner or operator of the EGU must install, to the extent not already installed, and properly operate and maintain one of the following emission control devices:

i) A Halogenated Activated Carbon Injection System, complying with the sorbent injection requirements of subsection (c)(2) of this Section, except as may be otherwise provided by subsection (c)(4) ~~of this Section~~, and followed by a Cold-Side Electrostatic Precipitator or Fabric Filter; or

ii) If the boiler fires bituminous coal, a Selective Catalytic Reduction (SCR) System and an SO<sub>2</sub> Scrubber.

B) An owner of an EGU in an MPS Group has two options under this subsection (c). For an MPS Group that contains EGUs smaller than 90 gross MW in capacity, the owner may designate any such EGUs to be not subject to subsection (c)(1)(A) ~~of this Section~~. Or, for an MPS Group that contains EGUs with gross MW capacity of less than 115 MW, the owner may designate any such EGUs to be not subject to subsection (c)(1)(A) ~~of this Section~~, provided that the aggregate gross MW capacity of the designated EGUs does not exceed 4% of the total gross MW capacity of the MPS Group. For any EGU subject to one of these two options, unless the EGU is subject to the emission standards in subsection (d)(2) ~~of this Section~~, beginning on January 1, 2013, and continuing until such date that the owner or operator of the EGU commits to comply with the mercury emission standard in subsection (d)(2) ~~of this Section~~, the owner or operator of the EGU must install and properly operate and maintain a Halogenated Activated Carbon Injection System that complies with the sorbent injection requirements of subsection (c)(2) ~~of this Section~~, except as may be otherwise provided by subsection (c)(4) ~~of this Section~~, and followed by either a Cold-Side Electrostatic Precipitator or Fabric Filter. The use of a properly installed, operated, and maintained Halogenated Activated Carbon Injection System that meets the sorbent injection requirements of subsection (c)(2) ~~of this Section~~ is defined as the "principal control technique."

2) For each EGU for which injection of halogenated activated carbon is required by subsection (c)(1) ~~of this Section~~, the owner or operator of the EGU must inject halogenated activated carbon in an optimum manner, which, except as provided in subsection (c)(4) ~~of this Section~~, is defined as all of the following:

A) The use of an injection system designed for effective absorption of mercury, considering the configuration of the EGU and its ductwork;

B) The injection of halogenated activated carbon manufactured by Alstom, Norit, or Sorbent Technologies, Calgon Carbon's FLUEPAC CF Plus, or Calgon Carbon's FLUEPAC MC Plus, or the injection of any other halogenated activated carbon or sorbent that the owner or operator of

the EGU has demonstrated to have similar or better effectiveness for control of mercury emissions; and

C) The injection of sorbent at the following minimum rates, as applicable:

i) For an EGU firing subbituminous coal, 5.0 lbs per million actual cubic feet or, for any cyclone-fired EGU that will install a scrubber and baghouse by December 31, 2012, and which already meets an emission rate of 0.020 lbs mercury/GWh gross electrical output or at least 75 percent reduction of input mercury, 2.5 lbs per million actual cubic feet;

ii) For an EGU firing bituminous coal, 10.0 lbs per million actual cubic feet for any cyclone-fired EGU that will install a scrubber and baghouse by December 31, 2012, and which already meets an emission rate of 0.020 lb mercury/GWh gross electrical output or at least 75 percent reduction of input mercury, 5.0 lbs per million actual cubic feet;

iii) For an EGU firing a blend of subbituminous and bituminous coal, a rate that is the weighted average of the above rates, based on the blend of coal being fired; or

iv) A rate or rates set lower by the Agency, in writing, than the rate specified in any of subsections (c) (2) (C) (i), (c) (2) (C) (ii), or (c) (2) (C) (iii) ~~of this Section~~ on a unit-specific basis, provided that the owner or operator of the EGU has demonstrated that such rate or rates are needed so that carbon injection will not increase particulate matter emissions or opacity so as to threaten noncompliance with applicable requirements for particulate matter or opacity.

D) For the purposes of subsection (c) (2) (C) ~~of this Section~~, the flue gas flow rate shall be the gas flow rate in the stack for all units except for those equipped with activated carbon injection prior to a hot-side electrostatic precipitator; for units equipped with activated carbon injection prior to a hot-side electrostatic precipitator, the flue gas flow rate shall be the gas flow rate at the inlet to the hot-side electrostatic precipitator, which shall be determined as the stack flow rate adjusted through the use of Charles' Law for the differences in gas temperatures in the stack and at the inlet to the electrostatic precipitator ( $V_{sp} = V_{stack} \times T_{sp}/T_{stack}$ , where V = gas flow rate in acf and T = gas temperature in Kelvin or Rankine).

3) The owner or operator of an EGU that seeks to operate an EGU with an activated carbon injection rate or rates that are set on a unit-specific basis pursuant to subsection (c) (2) (C) (iv) ~~of this Section~~ must submit an application to the Agency proposing such rate or rates, and must meet the requirements of subsections (c) (3) (A) and (c) (3) (B) ~~of this Section~~, subject to the limitations of subsections (c) (3) (C) and (c) (3) (D) ~~of this Section~~:

A) The application must be submitted as an application for a new or revised federally enforceable operating permit for the EGU, and it must include a summary of relevant mercury emission data for the EGU, the unit-specific injection rate or rates that are proposed, and detailed information to support the proposed injection rate or rates; and

B) This application must be submitted no later than the date that activated carbon must first be injected. For example, the owner or operator of an EGU that must inject activated carbon pursuant to subsection (c)(1)(A) ~~of this subsection~~ must apply for unit-specific injection rate or rates by July 1, 2009. Thereafter, the owner or operator of the EGU may supplement its application; and

C) Any decision of the Agency denying a permit or granting a permit with conditions that set a lower injection rate or rates may be appealed to the Board pursuant to Section 39 of the Act; and

D) The owner or operator of an EGU may operate at the injection rate or rates proposed in its application until a final decision is made on the application, including a final decision on any appeal to the Board.

4) During any evaluation of the effectiveness of a listed sorbent, an alternative sorbent, or other technique to control mercury emissions, the owner or operator of an EGU need not comply with the requirements of subsection (c)(2) ~~of this Section~~ for any system needed to carry out the evaluation, as further provided as follows:

A) The owner or operator of the EGU must conduct the evaluation in accordance with a formal evaluation program submitted to the Agency at least 30 days prior to commencement of the evaluation;

B) The duration and scope of the evaluation may not exceed the duration and scope reasonably needed to complete the desired evaluation of the alternative control technique, as initially addressed by the owner or operator in a support document submitted with the evaluation program;

C) The owner or operator of the EGU must submit a report to the Agency no later than 30 days after the conclusion of the evaluation that describes the evaluation conducted and which provides the results of the evaluation; and

D) If the evaluation of the alternative control technique shows less effective control of mercury emissions from the EGU than was achieved with the principal control technique, the owner or operator of the EGU must resume use of the principal control technique. If the evaluation of the alternative control technique shows comparable effectiveness to the principal control technique, the owner or operator of the EGU may either continue to use the alternative control technique in a manner that is at least as effective as the principal control technique, or it may resume use of the principal control technique. If the evaluation of the alternative control technique shows more effective control of

mercury emissions than the control technique, the owner or operator of the EGU must continue to use the alternative control technique in a manner that is more effective than the principal control technique, so long as it continues to be subject to this subsection (c).

5) In addition to complying with the applicable recordkeeping and monitoring requirements in Sections 225.240 through 225.290, the owner or operator of an EGU that elects to comply with this Subpart B by means of this Section must also comply with the following additional requirements:

A) For the first 36 months that injection of sorbent is required, it must maintain records of the usage of sorbent, the flue gas flow rate from the EGU (and, if the unit is equipped with activated carbon injection prior to a hot-side electrostatic precipitator, flue gas temperature at the inlet of the hot-side electrostatic precipitator and in the stack), and the sorbent feed rate, in pounds per million actual cubic feet of flue gas, on a weekly average;

B) After the first 36 months that injection of sorbent is required, it must monitor activated sorbent feed rate to the EGU, gas flow rate in the stack, and, if the unit is equipped with activated carbon injection prior to a hot-side electrostatic precipitator, flue gas temperature at the inlet of the hot-side electrostatic precipitator and in the stack. It must automatically record this data and the sorbent carbon feed rate, in pounds per million actual cubic feet of flue gas, on an hourly average; and

C) If a blend of bituminous and subbituminous coal is fired in the EGU, it must keep records of the amount of each type of coal burned and the required injection rate for injection of activated carbon, on a weekly basis.

6) Until June 30, 2012, as an alternative to the CEMS or excepted monitoring system (sorbent trap system) monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting requirements in Sections 225.240 through 225.290, the owner or operator of an EGU may elect to comply with the emissions testing, monitoring, recordkeeping, and reporting requirements in Section 225.239(c), (d), (e), (f) (1) and (2), (h) (2), (i) (3) and (4), and (j) (1).

7) In addition to complying with the applicable reporting requirements in Sections 225.240 through 225.290, the owner or operator of an EGU that elects to comply with this Subpart B by means of this Section must also submit quarterly reports for the recordkeeping and monitoring conducted pursuant to subsection (c) (5) ~~of this Section~~.

d) Emission Standards for Mercury-

1) For each EGU in an MPS Group that is not addressed by subsection (c) (1) (B) ~~of this Section~~, beginning January 1, 2015 (or such earlier

date when the owner or operator of the EGU notifies the Agency that it will comply with these standards) and continuing thereafter, the owner or operator of the EGU must comply with one of the following standards on a rolling 12-month basis:

A) An emission standard of 0.0080 lb mercury/GWh gross electrical output; or

B) A minimum 90-percent reduction of input mercury.

2) For each EGU in an MPS Group that has been addressed under subsection (c) (1) (B) ~~of this Section~~, beginning on the date when the owner or operator of the EGU notifies the Agency that it will comply with these standards and continuing thereafter, the owner or operator of the EGU must comply with one of the following standards on a rolling 12-month basis:

A) An emission standard of 0.0080 lb mercury/GWh gross electrical output; or

B) A minimum 90-percent reduction of input mercury.

3) Compliance with the mercury emission standard or reduction requirement of this subsection (d) must be calculated in accordance with Section 225.230(a) or (d), or Section 225.232 until December 31, 2013.

4) Until June 30, 2012, as an alternative to demonstrating compliance with the emissions standards in this subsection (d), the owner or operator of an EGU may elect to comply with the emissions testing requirements in Section 225.239(a) (4) 7 and (b), (c), (d), (e), (f), (g), (h), (i), and (j) ~~of this Subpart~~.

e) Emission Standards for NOx and SO<sub>2</sub> ~~2~~

1) NOx Emission Standards ~~7~~

A) Beginning in calendar year 2012 and continuing through calendar year ~~2018 in each calendar thereafter~~, 2018, for the EGUs in each MPS Group, the owner and operator of the EGUs must comply with an overall ~~NOx~~ ~~NOx~~ ~~NOx~~ annual emission rate of no more than 0.11 lb/million Btu or an emission rate equivalent to 52 percent of the Base Annual Rate of NOx emissions, whichever is more stringent.

B) Beginning in the 2012 ozone season and continuing through the ~~2018 in each~~ ozone season ~~thereafter~~, for the EGUs in each MPS Group, the owner and operator of the EGUs must comply with an overall NOx seasonal emission rate of no more than 0.11 lb/million Btu or an emission rate equivalent to 80 percent of the Base Seasonal Rate of NOx emissions, whichever is more stringent.

C) Except as otherwise provided in subsections (f), (g), and (h) 1, beginning in calendar year 2019 and continuing in each calendar year

thereafter, the owner and operator of the EGUs in an MPS Group must not cause or allow to be discharged into the atmosphere combined annual NOx emissions in excess of 22,469 tons from all EGUs.

D) Except as otherwise provided in ~~subsection~~subsections (f), (g), and (h) beginning in the year 2019 and continuing in each year thereafter, from May 1 to September 30 the owner and operator of the EGUs in an MPS Group must not cause or allow to be discharged into the atmosphere combined NOx emissions in excess of 11,500 tons from all EGUs.

E) On and after January 1, 2019, the owner and operator of any of Baldwin Units 1 and 2, Coffeen Units 1 and 2, Duck Creek Unit 1, E.D. Edwards Unit 3, and Havana Unit 9 must comply with the following:

i) Operate each existing selective catalytic reduction (SCR) control system on each EGU in accordance with good operating practices and at all times when the unit it serves is in operation, provided that such operation of the SCR control system is consistent with the technological limitations, manufacturers' specifications, and good engineering and maintenance practices for the SCR control system. During any such period in which the SCR is not operational, the owner and operator must minimize emissions to the extent reasonably practicable. All NOx emissions from each EGU, regardless of whether the SCR is operational or non-operational, must be included in determining compliance with the emission standards set forth under subsections (e) (1) (C), (e) (1) (D), ~~and~~ (f) (1), (g) (1), and (h) (1) as applicable.

ii) From May 1 through September 30, comply with a combined NOx average emission rate of no more than 0.10 lb/mmBtu. Averaging is only allowed among EGUs in the same MPS Group.

2) SO2 Emission Standards~~-~~

A) Beginning in calendar year 2013 and continuing in calendar year 2014, for the EGUs in each MPS Group, the owner and operator of the EGUs must comply with an overall SO2 annual emission rate of 0.33 lb/million Btu or a rate equivalent to 44 percent of the Base Rate of SO2 emissions, whichever is more stringent.

B) Beginning in calendar year 2015 and continuing through calendar year ~~2018 in each calendar year thereafter, 2018~~ 2018, for the EGUs in each MPS ~~Grouping~~Group, the owner and operator of the EGUs must comply with an overall annual emission rate for SO2 of 0.25 lbs/million Btu or a rate equivalent to 35 percent of the Base Rate of SO2 emissions, whichever is more stringent.

C) Except as otherwise provided in ~~subsection~~subsections (f), (g), and (h) beginning in calendar year 2019 and continuing in each calendar year thereafter, the owner and operator of the EGUs in an MPS Group must not cause or allow to be discharged into the atmosphere combined annual SO2 emissions in excess of 44,920 tons from all EGUs.

D) Beginning in calendar year 2019 and continuing in each calendar year thereafter, the owner and operator of Joppa Units 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, and 6 must not cause or allow to be discharged into the atmosphere combined annual SO<sub>2</sub> emissions in excess of 19,860 tons from such EGUs.

~~3) Ameren MPS Group Multi Pollutant Standard~~

~~A) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsections (e) (1) and (2) of this Section, this subsection (e) (3) applies to the Ameren MPS Group as described in the notice of intent submitted by Ameren Energy Resources in accordance with subsection (b) of this Section.~~

~~B) NO<sub>x</sub> Emission Standards.~~

~~i) Beginning in the 2010 ozone season and continuing in each ozone season thereafter, for the EGUs in the Ameren MPS Group, the owner and operator of the EGUs must comply with an overall NO<sub>x</sub> seasonal emission rate of no more than 0.11 lb/million Btu.~~

~~ii) Beginning in calendar year 2010 and continuing in calendar year 2011, for the EGUs in the Ameren MPS Group, the owner and operator of the EGUs must comply with an overall NO<sub>x</sub> annual emission rate of no more than 0.14 lb/million Btu.~~

~~iii) Beginning in calendar year 2012 and continuing in each calendar year thereafter, for the EGUs in the Ameren MPS Group, the owner and operator of the EGUs must comply with an overall NO<sub>x</sub> annual emission rate of no more than 0.11 lb/million Btu.~~

~~C) SO<sub>2</sub> Emission Standards~~

~~i) Beginning in calendar year 2010 and continuing in each calendar year through 2013, for the EGUs in the Ameren MPS Group, the owner and operator of the EGUs must comply with an overall SO<sub>2</sub> annual emission rate of 0.50 lb/million Btu.~~

~~ii) In calendar year 2014, for the EGUs in the Ameren MPS Group, the owner and operator of the EGUs must comply with an overall SO<sub>2</sub> annual emission rate of 0.43 lb/million Btu.~~

~~iii) Beginning in calendar year 2015 and continuing in calendar year 2016, for the EGUs in the Ameren MPS Group, the owner and operator of the EGUs must comply with an overall SO<sub>2</sub> annual emission rate of 0.25 lb/million Btu.~~

~~iv) Beginning in calendar year 2017 and continuing in each calendar year thereafter, for the EGUs in the Ameren MPS Group, the owner and operator of the EGUs must comply with an overall SO<sub>2</sub> annual emission rate of 0.23 lb /million Btu.~~

~~4) Compliance with the NO<sub>x</sub> and SO<sub>2</sub> emission standards must be demonstrated in accordance with Sections 225.310, 225.410, and 225.510.~~

~~The owner or operator of EGUs must complete the demonstration of compliance before March 1 of the following year for annual standards and before November 1 for seasonal standards, by which date a compliance report must be submitted to the Agency.~~

f) Transfer of EGUs in an MPS Group

1) If EGUs in an MPS Group are transferred to a different owner:

A) For the MPS Group from which EGUs are transferred: The combined emissions limitations for the MPS Group set forth in this Section, as applicable, must be adjusted by subtracting from those limitations the applicable allocation amounts set forth in Columns A, B, and C in subsection (f)(2) that are attributable to the transferred EGUs. The owner and operator of the MPS Group must comply with the adjusted emissions limitations beginning with the year in which the transfer occurs.

B) For a new MPS Group consisting of the acquired EGUs:

i) The owner and operator of the EGUs in an MPS Group must not cause or allow to be discharged into the atmosphere combined annual NOx emissions in excess of the applicable annual NOx limitation from all EGUs. The applicable annual NOx limitation shall be the sum of the allocation amounts attributable to all EGUs in the MPS Group set forth in Column A of subsection (f)(2).

ii) From May 1 through September 30, the owner and operator of the EGUs in an MPS Group must not cause or allow to be discharged into the atmosphere combined NOx emissions in excess of the applicable seasonal NOx limitation from all EGUs. The applicable seasonal NOx limitation shall be the sum of the allocation amounts attributable to all EGUs in the MPS Group set forth in Column B of subsection (f)(2).

iii) The owner and operator of the EGUs in an MPS Group must not cause or allow to be discharged into the atmosphere combined annual SO2 emissions in excess of the applicable annual SO2 limitation from all EGUs. The applicable annual SO2 limitation shall be the sum of the unit allocation amounts attributable to all EGUs in the MPS Group set forth in Column C of subsection (f)(2).

iv) Notwithstanding subsections (f)(1)(B)(i) through (iii), if all the EGUs set forth under subsection (a)(4)(A) are transferred to the same owner on the same date, the owner and operator of the EGUs in the new MPS Group must comply with the emission limitations under subsection (e); the allocation amounts in subsection (f)(2) shall not apply.

C) The owner and operator of the EGUs as of the last day of the applicable compliance period must demonstrate compliance with the emission standards of this Section for the entire applicable compliance period. In determining compliance, such owner and operator must include in their calculations emissions from the EGUs for the entire applicable



compliance period; the prior owner and operator shall not include in their calculations emissions from the EGUs for the applicable compliance period.

D) Nothing in this subsection (f) shall be construed to relieve owners and operators of EGUs in an MPS Group from any of the other requirements set forth in this Section, including the mercury standards ~~under~~in subsection (d).

2) Allocation Amounts in the Event of Transfer of EGUs

	<u>Column A.</u>	<u>Column B.</u>	<u>Column C.</u>	<u>Column D.</u>	<u>Column E.</u>	<u>Column F.</u>	<u>Column G.</u>	<u>Column H.</u>	<u>Column I.</u>
	<del>810</del>	<del>1,225</del>	<del>1,620</del>	<del>101,225</del>	<del>2,700</del>	<del>1,350</del>	<del>1,800</del>	<del>200</del>	<del>900</del>
	<del>675</del>	<del>4,900</del>	<del>675</del>	<del>4,900</del>	<del>200</del>	<del>900</del>	<del>200</del>	<del>900</del>	<del>630</del>
	<del>8,200</del>	<del>2,700</del>	<del>1,350</del>	<del>8,200</del>	<del>2,700</del>	<del>1,350</del>	<del>4,680</del>	<del>2,340</del>	<del>14,700</del>
	<del>1,215</del>	<del>8,200</del>	<del>2,430</del>	<del>1,215</del>	<del>8,200</del>	<del>2,430</del>	<del>1,215</del>	<del>8,200</del>	<del>2,430</del>

3) If EGUs in an MPS Group are transferred to a different owner:

A) The transferring owner must notify the Agency's Bureau of Air, Compliance Section, in writing within seven days after the date of transfer. The notification must include the following information:

i) Name and address of the transferring owner and operator;

ii) List of the EGUs transferred;

iii) For the remaining EGUs in the MPS Group, calculations pursuant to subsection (f)(1)(A) demonstrating the adjusted combined annual NOx emissions limitation, the adjusted combined NOx emissions limitation from May 1 through September 30, and the adjusted combined annual SO2 emissions limitation that are applicable to the MPS Group;

iv) Name and address of the new owner and operator; and

v) Date of transfer.

B) The acquiring owner must notify the Agency's Bureau of Air, Compliance Section, in writing within seven days after the date of transfer. The notification must include the following information:

i) Name and address of the acquiring owner and operator;

ii) Name and address of the transferring owner and operator;

iii) List of the EGUs acquired;

iv) Calculations pursuant to subsection (f)(1)(B) demonstrating the combined annual NOx emissions limitation, the combined NOx emissions limitation from May 1 through September 30, and the combined annual SO2 emissions limitation that are applicable to the acquiring owner and operator's MPS Group; and

v) Date of transfer.

g) Permanent Shutdown of EGUs in an MPS Group

1) If one or more EGUs in an MPS Group are permanently shut down:

A) Such EGU or EGUs are no longer part of an MPS Group and no longer subject to the requirements of this Section.

B) The combined emissions limitations for the MPS Group set forth in this Section, as applicable, must be adjusted by subtracting from those limitations the applicable allocation amounts set forth in Columns A, B, and C in subsection (g)(2) that are attributable to the shutdown EGU or EGUs. The owner and operator of the MPS Group must comply with the adjusted emissions limitations, beginning with the compliance period or periods during which the permanent shutdown occurs. For the purposes of this Section, "permanent shutdown" occurs on the date the owner or operator of the EGUs submits a written request to the Agency to modify its operating permit to reflect the shutdown of the EGU or EGUs, or to withdraw the permit for the source.

C) Nothing in this subsection (g) shall be construed to relieve owners and operators of EGUs in an MPS Group from any of the other requirements set forth in this Section, including the mercury standards underin subsection (d).

2) Allocation Amounts in the Event of Shutdown of EGUs

Column A. <u>Allocation</u>	Column B. <u>Allocation</u>	Column C. <u>Amount</u>	<del>NOx</del> <u>NOx</u>	<del>NOx</del> <u>SO2</u>	<u>Allocation</u>	<u>Amount</u>	<u>(TPY)</u>	<u>for</u>	<u>Shutdown</u>	<u>NOx</u>
Allocation 1 through Sept 30 (TPY) for Shutdown Tons)										
for Shutdown Shutdown A) Tons) for Shutdown SO2 Allocation Amount (TPY) for Shutdown A)										
Baldwin 1	1,850	920	1,850	920	1,680	B)				
Baldwin 2	1,710	860	1,710	860	1,560	C)	Baldwin 3	1,840	920	1,840
Hennepin 1	320	160	320	160	1,180	E)	Hennepin 1	320	160	320
Hennepin 2	1,030	500	1,030	500	3,720	G)	Coffeen 1	670	340	670
Coffeen 2	1,130	560	1,130	560	120	I)	Edward 3	1,570	780	1,570
Joppa 1	780	390	780	390	2,450	M)	Joppa 2	780	390	780
Joppa 3	780	390	780	390	2,450	P)	Joppa 4	780	390	780
Joppa 5	780	390	780	390	2,450	Q)	Joppa 6	780	390	780
Newton 1	2,430	1,220	2,430	1,220	8,200	R)	Newton 1	2,430	1,220	2,430

3) If one or more EGUs in an MPS Group are permanently shut down, the owner must notify the Agency's Bureau of Air, Compliance Section, in writing within seven days after the date of shutdown. Such notification must include the following information:

- A) Name and address of the owner and operator;
- B) List of the EGUs permanently shut down;

C) For the remaining EGUs in the MPS Group, calculations pursuant to subsection (g) (1) (B) demonstrating the adjusted combined annual NOx emissions limitation, the adjusted combined NOx emissions limitation from May 1 through September 30, and the adjusted combined annual SO2 emissions limitation that are applicable to the MPS Group; and

- D) Date of permanent shutdown.
- h) Temporary shutdown of EGUs in an MPS Group

1) If one or more EGUs in an MPS Group are temporarily shut down over an entire compliance period or periods:

A) The combined emissions limitations for the MPS Group set forth in this Section, as applicable, must be adjusted by subtracting from those limitations the applicable allocation amounts set forth in Columns A, B, and C in subsection (h) (2) that are attributable to the temporary shutdown of EGU or EGUs.

B) The owner and operator of the MPS Group must comply with the adjusted emissions limitations, beginning with the compliance period or periods during which the temporary shutdown occurs. The adjusted emissions limitations will no longer apply, if the EGU or EGUs resume operation.

C) Nothing in this subsection (h) shall be construed to relieve owners and operators of EGUs in an MPS Group from any of the other requirements set forth in this Section. including the mercury standards underin subsection (d).

2) Allocation amounts in the event of temporary shutdown of EGUs:

Column A.	Column B.	Column C.	NOx	NOx	SO2	Allocation
<del>Allocation</del>	<del>Allocation</del>	Amount	Amount	(May	Amount	(TPY) for <u>Temporary</u>
<del>Shutdown</del>	<del>NOx Allocation</del>	Amount	(May	1 through	Sept 30	(TPY) for <u>Temporary</u>
<del>Tons)</del>	<del>for</del>	Temporary	Shutdown	Temporary	Shutdown	Shutdown
<del>1</del>	<del>1,850</del>	<del>920</del>	<del>1,680</del>	<del>B)</del>	<del>Tons)</del>	<del>for</del>
<del>Temporary</del>	<del>Shutdown</del>	<del>Temporary</del>	<del>Shutdown</del>	<del>Shutdown</del>	<del>A)</del>	<del>Baldwin</del>
<del>1</del>	<del>1,850</del>	<del>920</del>	<del>1,680</del>	<del>B)</del>	<del>Tons)</del>	<del>for</del>
<del>Temporary</del>	<del>Shutdown</del>	<del>Temporary</del>	<del>Shutdown</del>	<del>Shutdown</del>	<del>A)</del>	<del>Baldwin</del>
<del>11,850</del>	<del>920</del>	<del>1,680</del>	<del>B)</del>	<del>Baldwin</del>	<del>2</del>	<del>1,710</del>
<del>21,710</del>	<del>860</del>	<del>1,560</del>	<del>C)</del>	<del>Baldwin</del>	<del>3</del>	<del>1,840</del>
<del>1,620</del>	<del>800</del>	<del>1,225</del>	<del>E)</del>	<del>Hennepin</del>	<del>1</del>	<del>320</del>
<del>1,620</del>	<del>800</del>	<del>1,225</del>	<del>E)</del>	<del>Hennepin</del>	<del>1</del>	<del>320</del>
<del>2</del>	<del>1,030</del>	<del>500</del>	<del>3,720</del>	<del>G)</del>	<del>31,840</del>	<del>920</del>
<del>21,620</del>	<del>800</del>	<del>1,225</del>	<del>E)</del>	<del>Hennepin</del>	<del>1320</del>	<del>160</del>
<del>21,030</del>	<del>500</del>	<del>3,720</del>	<del>G)</del>	<del>31,840</del>	<del>920</del>	<del>1,660</del>
<del>21,030</del>	<del>500</del>	<del>3,720</del>	<del>G)</del>	<del>31,840</del>	<del>920</del>	<del>1,660</del>
<del>1,130</del>	<del>560</del>	<del>120</del>	<del>1)</del>	<del>21,130</del>	<del>560</del>	<del>120</del>
<del>200</del>	<del>J)</del>	<del>Edwards</del>	<del>2</del>	<del>1,130</del>	<del>560</del>	<del>3,440</del>
<del>780</del>	<del>4,760</del>	<del>L)</del>	<del>11,260</del>	<del>640</del>	<del>200</del>	<del>J)</del>
<del>31,570</del>	<del>780</del>	<del>390</del>	<del>2,450</del>	<del>M)</del>	<del>1780</del>	<del>390</del>
<del>780</del>	<del>390</del>	<del>2,450</del>	<del>N)</del>	<del>2780</del>	<del>390</del>	<del>2,450</del>
<del>0)</del>	<del>3780</del>	<del>390</del>	<del>2,450</del>	<del>O)</del>	<del>Joppa</del>	<del>4</del>
<del>2,450</del>	<del>R)</del>	<del>6780</del>	<del>390</del>	<del>2,450</del>	<del>R)</del>	<del>Newton</del>
<del>8,200</del>	<del>12,430</del>	<del>1,220</del>	<del>8,200</del>	<del>12,430</del>	<del>1,220</del>	<del>8,200</del>

3) If one or more EGUs in an MPS Group are temporarily shut down over an entire compliance period, the owner or operator must notify the Agency's Bureau of Air, Compliance Section, in writing within seven days after the start date of shutdown. Such notification must include the following information:

- A) Name and address of the owner and operator;
- B) List of the EGUs temporarily shut down;

C) For the remaining EGUs in the MPS Group, calculations pursuant to subsection (g) (1) (B) demonstrating the adjusted combined annual NOx emissions limitation, the adjusted combined NOx emissions limitation from May 1 through September 30, and the adjusted combined annual SO2 emissions limitation that are applicable to the MPS Group during the temporary shutdown of one or more EGUs; and

D) Start date and duration of temporary shutdown.

i)g) Requirements for NOx and SO2 Allowances.

1) The owner or operator of EGUs in an MPS Group must not sell or trade to any person or otherwise exchange with or give to any person NOx allowances allocated to the EGUs in the MPS Group for vintage years 2012 and beyond that would otherwise be available for sale, trade, or exchange as a result of actions taken to comply with the standards in subsection (e) ~~of this Section~~. Such allowances that are not retired for compliance must be surrendered to the Agency on an annual basis, beginning in calendar year 2013. This provision does not apply to the use, sale, exchange, gift, or trade of allowances among the EGUs in an MPS Group.

2) The owners or operators of EGUs in an MPS Group must not sell or trade to any person or otherwise exchange with or give to any person SO2 allowances allocated to the EGUs in the MPS Group for vintage years 2013 and beyond that would otherwise be available for sale or trade as a result of actions taken to comply with the standards in subsection (e) ~~of this Section~~. Such allowances that are not retired for compliance, or otherwise surrendered pursuant to a consent decree to which the State of Illinois is a party, must be surrendered to the Agency on an annual basis, beginning in calendar year 2014. This provision does not apply to the use, sale, exchange, gift, or trade of allowances among the EGUs in an MPS Group.

3) The provisions of this subsection (i) ~~(f)~~ do not restrict or inhibit the sale or trading of allowances that become available from one or more EGUs in a MPS Group as a result of holding allowances that represent over-compliance with the NOx or SO2 standard in subsection (e) ~~of this Section~~, once such a standard becomes effective, whether such over-compliance results from control equipment, fuel changes, changes in the method of operation, unit shut downs, or other reasons.

4) For purposes of this subsection (i) ~~(f)~~, NOx and SO2 allowances mean allowances necessary for compliance with Sections 225.310, 225.410, or 225.510, 40 CFR 72, or Subparts AA and AAAA of 40 CFR 96, or any future federal NOx or SO2 emissions trading programs that modify or replace these programs. This Section does not prohibit the owner or operator of EGUs in an MPS Group from purchasing or otherwise obtaining allowances from other sources as allowed by law for purposes of complying with federal or state requirements, except as specifically set forth in this Section.

5) By March 1, 2010, and continuing each year thereafter, the owner or operator of EGUs in an MPS Group must submit a report to the Agency that demonstrates compliance with the requirements of this subsection (i) ~~(f)~~ for the previous calendar year, and which includes identification of any allowances that have been surrendered to the USEPA or to the Agency and any allowances that were sold, gifted, used, exchanged, or traded because they became available due to over-compliance. All

allowances that are required to be surrendered must be surrendered by August 31, unless USEPA has not yet deducted the allowances from the previous year. A final report will be submitted to the Agency by August 31 of each year, verifying that the actions described in the initial report have taken place or, if such actions have not taken place, an explanation of all changes that have occurred and the reasons for such changes. If USEPA has not deducted the allowances from the previous year by August 31, the final report will be due, and all allowances required to be surrendered must be surrendered, within 30 days after such deduction occurs.

~~g) Notwithstanding 35 Ill. Adm. Code 201.146(hhh), until an EGU has complied with the applicable emission standards of subsections (d) and (e) of this Section for 12 months, the owner or operator of the EGU must obtain a construction permit for any new or modified air pollution control equipment that it proposes to construct for control of emissions of mercury, NOx, or SO2.~~

j) Recordkeeping

On and after January 1, 2019, and continuing each year thereafter, the owner and operator of the EGUs in an MPS Group must keep and maintain all records necessary to demonstrate compliance with this Section, including but not limited to those listed in subsections (j)(1) and (j)(2). Copies of such records must be kept at the source and maintained for at least five years from the date the document is created and must be submitted by the owner and operator to the Agency within 30 days after receipt of a written request by the Agency.

1) All emissions monitoring information gathered in accordance with 40 CFR 75.

2) Copies of all reports and compliance certifications required under subsection (k) of this Section.

k) Reporting

1) Prior to January 1, 2019, compliance with the NOx and SO2 emission standards must be demonstrated in accordance with Sections 225.310, 225.410, and 225.510. The owner or operator of EGUs must complete the demonstration of compliance before March 1 of the following year for annual standards and before November 1 for seasonal standards, by which date a compliance report must be submitted to the Agency.

2) On and after January 1, 2019, and continuing each year thereafter, the owner and operator of the EGUs in an MPS Group must demonstrate compliance with the applicable requirements set forth in this subsection (k)(2).

A) Beginning in 2020, and continuing each year thereafter, the owner and operator of EGUs in an MPS Group must submit to the Agency's Bureau of Air, Compliance Section, a report demonstrating compliance with the annual emissions standards underin subsections (e)(1)(C), (e)(2)(C), (e)(2)(D), and (f)(1), as applicable, and with the requirements underof

subsection (e)(1)(E)(i), as applicable, on or before March 1 of each year. The compliance report must include the following for the preceding calendar year:

- i) Actual emissions of each pollutant, expressed in tons, for each individual EGU in the MPS Group.
- ii) Combined actual emissions of each pollutant, expressed in tons, for all EGUs in the MPS Group.
- iii) Combined actual emissions of SO<sub>2</sub>, expressed in tons, for all Joppa EGUs.
- iv) A statement indicating whether each existing SCR control system on Baldwin Units 1 and 2, Coffeen Units 1 and 2, Duck Creek Unit 1, E.D. Edwards Unit 3, and Havana Unit 9 was operated in accordance with good operating practices and at all times when the unit it serves was in operation, consistent with the technological limitations, manufacturers' specifications, and good engineering and maintenance practices for the SCR control system.
- v) A statement indicating whether the EGUs in an MPS Group were operated in compliance with the requirements of this Section.
- vi) A certification by a responsible official that states the following:

I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations.

B) By November 1 of each year, the owner and operator of EGUs in an MPS Group must submit to the Agency's Bureau of Air, Compliance Section, a report demonstrating compliance with the seasonal emissions standards under subsections (e)(1)(D), (e)(1)(E)(ii), and (f)(1), as applicable. The compliance report must include the following for the preceding May 1 through September 30:

- i) Actual emissions of NO<sub>x</sub>, expressed in tons, for each individual EGU in the MPS Group.
- ii) Combined actual emissions of NO<sub>x</sub>, expressed in tons, of all EGUs in the MPS Group.

iii) NOx average emission rate (lbs/mmBtu) for each of Baldwin Units 1 and 2; Coffeen Units 1 and 2; Duck Creek Unit 1; E.D. Edwards Unit 3; and Havana Unit 9, as applicable.

iv) Combined NOx average emission rate (lbs/mmBtu) for Baldwin Units 1 and 2; Coffeen Units 1 and 2; Duck Creek Unit 1; E.D. Edwards Unit 3; and Havana Unit 9, as applicable under subsection (e)(1)(E)(ii).

v) A statement indicating whether the EGUs in an MPS Group were operated in compliance with the requirements of this Section.

vi) A certification by a responsible official that states the following:

I certify under penalty of law that this document and all attachments were prepared under my direction or supervision in accordance with a system designed to assure that qualified personnel properly gather and evaluate the information submitted. Based on my inquiry of the person or persons directly responsible for gathering the information, the information submitted is, to the best of my knowledge and belief, true, accurate, and complete. I am aware that there are significant penalties for submitting false information, including the possibility of fine and imprisonment for knowing violations.

3) For each EGU in an MPS Group, the owner or operator must notify the Agency of deviations from any of the requirements of this Section within 30 days after discovery of the deviations. At a minimum, these notifications must include a description of the deviations, a discussion of the possible cause of the deviations, and a description of any corrective actions and preventative measures taken.

4) Within 30 days after the beginning of a period during which the SCR control system on any of Baldwin Unit 1, Baldwin Unit 2, Coffeen Unit 1, Coffeen Unit 2, Duck Creek Unit 1, E.D. Edwards Unit 3, or Havana Unit 9 is not operated when the EGU it serves is in operation, the owner and operator must notify the Agency's Bureau of Air, Compliance Section, in writing. This notification must include, at a minimum, a description of why the SCR control system was not operated, the time frames during which the SCR control system was not operated, and the steps taken to minimize emissions during those time frames.

(Source: Amended at 43 Ill. Reg. \_\_\_\_\_, effective \_\_\_\_\_ -)

~~ILLINOIS REGISTER~~

~~POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD~~

~~NOTICE OF PROPOSED AMENDMENT~~

~~JCAR350225-1819158r01~~

~~ILLINOIS REGISTER~~



~~POLLUTION CONTROL BOARD~~

~~NOTICE OF PROPOSED AMENDMENTS~~

Document comparison by Workshare Compare on Monday, October 22, 2018  
9:49:27 AM

Input:	
Document 1 ID	file:///I:\Input\Agency Rulemakings - Files Received\2018\October 2018\35-225-Agency Proposed-(issue 43).docx
Description	35-225-Agency Proposed-(issue 43)
Document 2 ID	file:///I:\Input\Agency Rulemakings - Files Received\2018\October 2018\35-225-r01(issue 43).docx
Description	35-225-r01(issue 43)
Rendering set	Standard

Legend:	
<u>Insertion</u>	
<del>Deletion</del>	
<del>Moved from</del>	
<u>Moved to</u>	
Style change	
Format change	
<del>Moved deletion</del>	
Inserted cell	
Deleted cell	
Moved cell	
Split/Merged cell	
Padding cell	

Statistics:	
	Count
Insertions	73
Deletions	132
Moved from	0
Moved to	0
Style change	0
Format changed	0
Total changes	205